
 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, December 12, 2023 

6:30 P.M. 
 

If you need any assistance due to a disability, please contact the Planning 
Department at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting at 

planning@ypsitownship.org or 734-544-4000 ext. 1. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 14, 2023, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. SPECIAL CONDITIONAL USE – DEALPOINT MERRILL – 2515 ELLSWORTH ROAD – 

PARCEL K-11-18-100-013 – TO CONSIDER THE REQUEST OF A SPECIAL LAND USE 
APPLICATION OF DEALPOINT MERRILL TO PERMIT THE ADAPTIVE REUSE OF THE 
ROUNDTREE SHOPPING CENTER WHICH INCLUDES THE CONTINUATION OF RETAIL 
USES, REPURPOSING THE VACANT WALMART BUILDING INTO A CLIMATE-
CONTROLLED SELF-STORAGE FACILITY AND RETAIL SPACE, AND FUTURE RETAIL 
OUTLOT DEVELOPMENT FOR A SITE ZONED GB – GENERAL BUSINESS.  

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS  

 
A. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN – DEALPOINT MERRILL – 2515 ELLSWORTH ROAD – PARCEL 

K-11-18-100-013 – TO CONSIDER THE PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPLICATION OF DEAL 
POINT MERRILL TO PERMIT THE ADAPTIVE REUSE OF THE ROUNDTREE SHOPPING 
CENTER WHICH INCLUDES THE CONTINUATION OF RETAIL USES, REPURPOSING THE 
VACANT WALMART BUILDING INTO A CLIMATE-CONTROLLED SELF-STORAGE FACILITY 
AND RETAIL SPACE, AND FUTURE RETAIL OUTLOT DEVELOPMENT FOR A SITE ZONED 
GB – GENERAL BUSINESS.  
 

B. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN – VISIBLE LEARNING CENTER – 1189 E. MICHIGAN AVENUE – 
PARCEL K-11-10-106-018 – TO CONSIDER THE PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPLICATION 
OF THE VISIBLE LEARNING CENTER TO PERMIT THE CONSTRUCTION OF A DRIVEWAY 
OFF OF EAST MICHIGAN AVENUE AND TO IMPROVE EXISTING PARKING AREAS FOR A 
2.28 ACRE SITE ZONED RC – REGIONAL CORRIDOR WITH A SITE TYPE B DESIGNATION.  

 
 

C. ADOPTION OF REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING DATES FOR THE 2024 
CALENDAR YEAR  

 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

8. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE 

 
9. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
10. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
11. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
12. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
13. OTHER BUSINESS  

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 7 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, November 14, 2023 
6:30 pm 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 

Bill Sinkule, Chair 
Gloria Peterson 
Larry Doe 
Muddasar Tawakkul 
 
STAFF AND CONSULTANTS  

Fletcher Reyher, Planning and Development Coordinator 

Dennis McLain, Ypsilan� Township Atorney 

 

• CALL TO ORDER/ESTABLISH QUORUM 

  MOTION: Mr. Sinkule called the mee�ng to order at 6:30 pm. 

 

• APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 24, 2023, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MOTION: Mr. Tawakkul MOVED to approve the October 24, 2023, regular mee�ng minutes. 
The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Doe and PASSED by unanimous consent. 

 

• APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Mr. Doe MOVED to approve the proposed agenda. The MOTION was             
SECONDED by Mr. Tawakkul and PASSED by unanimous consent. 

 

• PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None 

 

• OLD BUSINESS 

None 

 



Page 2 of 7 
 

• NEW BUSINESS 

 

• PRELIMINARY SKETCH SITE PLAN – CALIBER COLLISION – 1133 E. MICHIGAN AVENUE – PARCEL 
K-11-10-125-014 – TO CONSIDER THE PRELIMINARY SKETCH SITE PLAN APPLICATION OF 
CALIBER COLLISION TO PERMIT THE USE OF THE EXISTING BUILDING / SITE FOR AN 
AUTOMOBILE COLLISION BUSINESS FOR A 3.4 ACRE PARCEL ZONED RC – REGIONAL CORRIDOR 
WITH A SITE TYPE C DESIGNATION. 

Mr. Fletcher Reyher, Planning and Development Coordinator, presented to the 
Commission the preliminary sketch plan for a Caliber Collision to be located at 1133 East 
Michigan Avenue. This property is zoned RC regional corridor with a site type C 
designa�on. Caliber Collision is reques�ng sketch plan approval to move their opera�on 
into the exis�ng building that’s located on the property. Caliber Collision offers collision 
repair, auto repair, glass repair, and other automo�ve services. The Charter Township of 
Ypsilan� 2040 Master Plan designates this site for Mixed Use Corridors, a designa�on 
intended to develop transporta�on arteries with a mixture of residen�al, commercial, 
office and employment use. Regional Mixed-Use corridor areas are located along the 
busiest corridors (East Michigan Avenue). 

Mr. Fletcher Reyher presented the Commission with an aerial view of the property in 
discussion. 

The building has historically been used for automo�ve services. There is vacant land on 
the north of the property, Industrial and automo�ve services to the south, and 
Commercial uses at the east and west of the property. The subject parcel is rela�vely 
flat. The site has woodlands on the northern por�on of the property. According to FEMA 
MAP, the site is in an area of minimal flood hazard. The land will be used for collision 
business. 

This property has an extensive history of special land use approvals from the Planning 
Commission for various automo�ve purposes. The first being June 26, 2001, the Planning 
Commission granted a special condi�onal use permit for vehicle sales and a collision 
facility. September 10, 2002, the Planning Commission granted a Special Condi�onal Use 
Permit to operate an auto body collision shop as an accessory use to the RV Dealership. 
March 27, 2007, the Planning Commission granted a Special Condi�onal Use Permit to 
allow for the sale of new and used tractor-trailer trucks as opposed to   RVs. 

Caliber Collision would con�nue the special land use approvals already granted to the 
property with the caveat that there would be no automobile sales and only be used as a 
collision shop. It is to be noted that in the future, this site would not be allowed to 
change back into automobile sales, it would specifically be used for collision if Caliber 
Collision is there. 



Page 3 of 7 
 

Non-Conformi�es: Since the site has historically been used for auto body work and 
collision repair work, the planning department finds this use appropriate. There would 
be no tractor-trailers stored on site, the site would be used for servicing automobiles, 
screened behind a fence to the rear of the property. 1133 East Michigan Avenue is a 
Class B Nonconforming Structure. Caliber Collision can use what is already there, they 
are not permited to expand or enlarge the building that’s currently on the site.  

Parking: Caliber Collision has met all the minimum parking standards set by the township 
zoning ordinance. The Planning Department will require that the applicant paint / 
restripe the exis�ng parking lot. The applicant will be required to have a minimum of 5 
barrier free parking spaces and the provision of one bicycle rack, as required by the 
township zoning ordinance. 

Landscaping: The landscaping plan provided by Caliber Collision complies with the 
current zoning ordinance. 

Dumpster: Applicant has included a dumpster enclosure on the plans. The applicant will 
be u�lizing the exis�ng ligh�ng on site.  

Ligh�ng: The Planning Department will require that all lights be properly shielded to 
avoid projec�ng light onto adjacent proper�es.  

Eleva�ons: Caliber Collision does not propose any major modifica�ons to the eleva�ons 
of the building. The Planning Department requires that the applicant re-paint the front 
façade of the building and remove the old sign outline. 

Fencing: There is an exis�ng wooden privacy fence which screens the rear of the 
property, where the storage of the automobile is present. The planning department 
plans on asking the applicant to assess the condi�on of the fence and repair any fencing 
that is damaged. Mr. Fletcher Reyher stated that the fence is in good shape, and it would 
require some cleaning.  

The Planning Department makes the following recommenda�ons to the Planning 
Commission: 

• Provide required bicycle parking. 

• Provide new fence plans that are permited per the Township Zoning Ordinance. 
(The applicant has already submited the fence plans) 

• Ensure that all exis�ng lights are appropriately shielded. 

• Repaint the front façade to ensure the previous sign outline is not present. 

• Restripe the parking lot. 



Page 4 of 7 
 

• Address all outstanding comments as provided in the leters atached to the 
Director’s Report. 

• The applicant shall provide a sidewalk connect from Michigan Ave internal to their 
site. 

• The applicant shall also verify the exis�ng sidewalk along Michigan. 

• The applicant shall provide the loca�on of all barrier-free parking spaces on the 
plans. It should be van accessible. 

• Any other condi�ons based upon Planning Commission discussion. 

Reviews of different departments: 

• OHM: The engineering consultant recommends approval for the Planning 
Commission’s considera�on, listed in the report. 

• Fire Department: Ypsilan� township Fire Department approved the plans 
condi�onally. The fire marshal has some concerns about the change in use, 
which would require automa�c sprinkler systems and proper fire hydrant 
coverage. 

• YCUA: Scot Westover had no concerns or objec�ons with the project. 

Mr. Fletcher Reyher informed the Commission of the minor items that require to be 
addressed; the reten�on pond at the rear of the building that needs to be cleaned and 
can adequately hold stormwater. These items will be addressed at the �me of the final 
site plan. 

Mr. Doe inquired about cameras on the property; Mr. Fletcher Reyher stated that they 
have been men�oned in the suggested mo�on. The applicant would be entering into a 
development agreement with the township which outlines the requirement for security 
cameras. The Planning Commission would also like to discuss the hours of opera�on. 

Mr. Tawakkul inquired if the applicant agreed with the recommended changes; Tim 
Dearman partner with old Ken McDonald, who has developed for Caliber Collision in 10 
states. Mr. Dearman presented a colored presenta�on of the eleva�on and informed 
that Caliber Collision try to create a consistent look across their 1700 loca�ons in 41 
states. Caliber Collision are closed over the weekends, their hour of opera�on is from 
Monday – Friday (7:30 am – 5:30 pm). They hire about 18-24 technicians. Caliber 
Collision is very ac�ve in food banks in the communi�es; American Heart Associa�on 
and they give away cars to veterans. Caliber Collision has got four approved sites. They 
are under construc�on in the towns of Adrienne, Mount Pleasant and Jackson. A total 
wrecked vehicle is never on the lot for more than 48 hours, it is hauled out once reviewed 
by Insurance. 



Page 5 of 7 
 

MOTION: Mr. Tawakkul MOVED to approve the e preliminary sketch site plan of Caliber 
Collision to permit the use of the exis�ng building / site for an automobile collision 
business for a 3.4-acre site zoned RC – Regional Corridor with a Site Type C Designa�on, 
located at 1133 E. Michigan Avenue, Ypsilan�, MI 48198, Parcel K-11-10-125-014, with 
the following condi�ons: 

• The applicant shall address all outstanding comments from reviewing agencies prior 
to Final Site Plan approval. 

• The applicant shall obtain all applicable internal and outside agency permits prior to 
construc�on. 

• The applicant shall provide the required bicycle parking. 

• The applicant shall provide the Planning Department with revised fence plans that 
are permited per the Township Zoning Ordinance. 

• The applicant shall ensure that all exis�ng light fixtures are func�oning and properly 
shielded. 

• The applicant shall repaint the front façade of the building. 

• The applicant shall repaint / restripe the parking lot. 

• The applicant shall provide the loca�on of all barrier-free parking spaces on the final 
site plan. The applicant shall provide a minimum of five (5) barrier-free parking 
spaces, including one (1) van-accessible space, as required by the Township Zoning 
Ordinance. 

• The applicant shall provide a sidewalk connect from Michigan Ave internal to their 
site. The applicant shall also verify the exis�ng sidewalk along Michigan Ave, any 
barrier-free parking spaces and access aisles, and any exis�ng on-site sidewalks are 
compliant. 

• Caliber Collision will enter into a development agreement pursuant to the Final Site 
Plan Approval with the Township. 

• Any other condi�ons based upon Planning Commission Discussion. 

The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Doe 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Tawakkul (Yes); Mr. Doe (Yes); Ms. Peterson (Yes); Mr. Sinkule (Yes). 

 
MOTION PASSED. 

 



Page 6 of 7 
 

• FINAL SITE PLAN APPROVAL EXTENSION – YPSILANTI TENNIS CLUB – 3160 W. MICHIGAN 
AVENUE – PARCEL K-11-18-340-001 – TO CONSIDER THE REQUEST TO EXTEND THE FINAL SITE 
PLAN APPROVAL GRANTED TO YPSILANTI TENNIS CLUB ON DECEMBER 14, 2022. 

Mr. Fletcher Reyher, Planning and Development Coordinator, presented to the 
Commission the request made on October 30, 2023, from the applicant of the Ypsilan� 
tennis club to be located at 3160 West Michigan Avenue for an extension of their final 
site plan approval for one year. This extension would be granted from December 14, 
2023, un�l December 14, 2024. 

The preliminary site plan that was approved by the Planning Commission and the final 
site plan approved by the township administra�vely on December 14, 2022, has been 
included in the packet. The Planning Commission has the authority to extend the final 
site plan approvals and would work with the applicant to submit all the required 
approvals and permits prior to scheduling the preconstruc�on mee�ng. The Planning 
Commission reckons that the tennis project would be an asset to the community. 

Mr. Tawakkul inquired the reasons for the delay; Mr. Fletcher Reyher stated there were 
mul�ple reasons; financing, hiring of project managers and the construc�on companies 
to build the project. They plan to start the construc�on during spring of 2024. 

Mr. Fletcher Reyher shared with the Commission the par�al water design and the 
landscaping with a fountain. 

Mr. Tawakkul inquired if the project required a development agreement; Mr. Fletcher 
Reyher stated that the suggested mo�ons don’t reflect the need, but he would clarify 
and correspond it back to the Commission. 

 MOTION: Mr. Tawakkul MOVED to approve the extension. 

 The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Doe 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Tawakkul (Yes); Mr. Doe (Yes); Ms. Peterson (Yes); Mr. Sinkule (Yes). 

 
MOTION PASSED. 

 

• OPEN DISCUSSIONS FOR ISSUES NOT ON AGENDA 

 
• Correspondence received. 

Mr. Fletcher Reyher informed the Commission on the availability of literature at the stand.  

Mr. Fletcher Reyher informed Ms. Peterson of adding her to the Michigan Associa�on of 
planning mailing lists. 



Page 7 of 7 
 

• Planning Commission members 

None to Report. 

• Members of the audience 

None to Report. 

• TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

None to Report. 

• ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

None to Report. 

• TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 

None to Report. 

• PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

Mr. Fletcher Reyher informed the Commission that Roundhouse con�nues to make efforts to 
construct their new building and gas sta�on. The Children’s Healing Center is con�nuing to on 
their project.  

Mee�ng for December 12, 2023, is s�ll under considera�on. 

• OTHER BUSINESS 

None to Report. 

• ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: Mr. Doe MOVED to adjourn at 7:01 pm. The MOTION was SECONDED by Ms. 
Peterson and PASSED by unanimous consent. 

 

 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Respec�vely Submited by Minutes Services. 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Staff Report  
DealPoint Merrill – Self-Storage 

2515 Ellsworth Road, Ypsilanti MI  
Site Plan  

 
December 12, 2023 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applicant: DealPoint Merrill  
 
Project Name: DealPoint Merrill – Self-Storage  
 
Plan Date: 10-09-2023 
 
Location: 2515 Ellsworth Road, Ypsilanti MI, 48197 Parcel ID# K-11-18-100-013 
 
Zoning: GB – General Business  
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan and Special Conditional Use Approval 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Case Location and Summary 
DealPoint Merrill is purchasing the Roundtree Shopping Center. The Purchase will 
include the vacant Walmart building, the strip mall with Harbor Freight and Game Stop, 
and the strip mall with Lumber Liquidators. The Office of Community Standards is in 
receipt of a Preliminary Site Plan Application and Special Land Use Application from 
DealPoint Merrill requesting approval to repurpose the vacant Walmart into a 131,600 
sq.ft. self-storage facility and 18,400 sq. ft. of retail. This project will also include façade 
improvements, parking lot repairs / repaving, landscaping, installation of license plate 
readers, lighting upgrades, and the removal of 27,400 sq.ft. of impervious parking area.  
 
Cross References  

• Article 4, District Regulations  
• Article 9, Site Plan Review  
• Article 11, Specific Provisions 
• Article 12, Access, Parking, Loading 
• Article 13, Site Design Standards 

 
Subject Site Use, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti 2040 Master Plan designates this site for 
Neighborhood Transition District. Neighborhood Transition Districts are residential, office 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

and/or commercial uses, but can include institutional/civic uses and spaces. Possible 
housing types range from single-family homes to detached and attached condominiums 
to multiple-family buildings, when compatible with adjacent neighborhoods. Often, there 
is no set land use pattern and the diversity of uses serves as a transition from between 
Neighborhood Preservation and Mixed-Use Corridor or Innovation and Employment 
districts. The mixture, design and intensity of uses is intended to support and protect the 
pattern, scale, and character of adjacent neighborhoods.  
 

Aerial Photograph – 2023 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Size of Subject Site: 
30.407 Acres 
 
Current Use of Subject Site: 
Strip Commercial and Vacant Walmart  
 
Current Zoning: 
GB – General Business  
 
Proposed use of Subject Property: 
Self-Storage and Strip Commercial  
 
Adjacent Uses, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan 
 

Direction 
 

Use Zoning Master Plan 

North Multiple Family / 
Single Family 

RM-LD, Multiple 
Family Low Density 

Neighborhood 
Preservation 

South Vacant  RC – Regional 
Corridor 

Neighborhood 
Transition and Mixed-
Use Corridors  

East Strip Commercial  RC – Regional 
Corridor & GB – 
General Business 

Neighborhood 
Transition 

West Multiple Family  RM-MD, Multiple 
Family Medium 
Density 

Neighborhood 
Transition  

 
Natural Features 
 
Topography: The subject parcel is relatively flat.  
 
Woodlands: There are matured woodland trees on the property behind the strip 
commercial area.  
 
Wetlands: There are no wetlands on the subject property. According to FEMA MAP 
26161C0407E, Dated April 3, 2012, the site is in an area of minimal flood hazard.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Analysis:  
 
The plans have been reviewed by Township Staff and consultants in accordance with our 
procedures.  
 
Planning Consultants (Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc.): 
CWA reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan and Special Conditional Use Application and 
has recommended approval in their letter dated November 27, 2023.  
 
Engineering Consultants (OHM): 
The Township Engineer recommended approval for this stage of the process in their 
November 28, 2023, review letter. OHM has provided preliminary detailed engineering 
comments that will be addressed at the time of Final Site Plan and Detailed Engineering 
Review.  
 
Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (YCUA):  
Reviewing agent Scott Westover offered no comments or concerns about the plans as 
they are not proposing new utilities.  
 
Ypsilanti Township Fire Department:  
YTFD Fire Marshall Steve Wallgren has recommended Preliminary Site Plan approval in 
a letter dated October 27, 2023.  
 
Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission:  
N/A  
 
Washtenaw County Road Commission: 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
Special Conditional Use  

 
Suggested Motions: The following suggested motions and conditions are provided to 
assist the Planning Commission in making the most appropriate motion for this 
application. The Commission may utilize, add, or reject any conditions suggested herein, 
as they deem appropriate. 
 
Motion to table:  
 
“I move to table the request for special conditional use permit approval of DealPoint 
Merrill to permit the repurposing of the Roundtree Shopping Center which includes the 
continuation of retail uses, repurposing the vacant Walmart building into a climate-
controlled self-storage facility and retail space, and associated site upgrades for a 30.407-
acre site zoned GB – General Business, located at 2515 Ellsworth Road, Ypsilanti, MI 
48197, Parcel K-11-18-100-013 to consider comments presented to the Planning 
Commission during the discussion of the project.”  
 
Motion to approve.  
 
“I move to approve the special conditional use permit of DealPoint Merrill to permit the 
repurposing of the Roundtree Shopping Center which includes the continuation of retail 
uses, repurposing the vacant Walmart building into a climate-controlled self-storage 
facility and retail space, and associated site upgrades for a 30.407-acre site zoned GB – 
General Business, located at 2515 Ellsworth Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-18-
100-013, with the following conditions:  
 

1. The applicant shall address all outstanding comments from reviewing agencies 
prior to Final Site Plan approval.  

2. The applicant shall obtain all applicable internal and outside agency permits prior 
to construction.  

3. The applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the Township.  
4. Any other conditions based upon Planning Commission Discussion. 

 
Motion to deny:  
 
“I move to deny the special conditional use permit of DealPoint Merrill to permit the 
repurposing of the Roundtree Shopping Center which includes the continuation of retail 
uses, repurposing the vacant Walmart building into a climate-controlled self-storage 
facility and retail space, and associated site upgrades for a 30.407-acre site zoned GB – 
General Business, located at 2515 Ellsworth Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-18-
100-013, for the following reasons: 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Preliminary Site Plan  
 

Suggested Motions: The following suggested motions and conditions are provided to 
assist the Planning Commission in making the most appropriate motion for this 
application. The Commission may utilize, add, or reject any conditions suggested herein, 
as they deem appropriate. 
 
Motion to table:  
 
“I move to table the request for preliminary site plan approval of DealPoint Merrill to 
permit the repurposing of the Roundtree Shopping Center which includes the continuation 
of retail uses, repurposing the vacant Walmart building into a climate-controlled self-
storage facility and retail space, and associated site upgrades for a 30.407-acre site 
zoned GB – General Business, located at 2515 Ellsworth Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, 
Parcel K-11-18-100-013 to consider comments presented to the Planning Commission 
during the discussion of the project.”  
 
Motion to approve.  
 
“I move to approve the preliminary site plan of DealPoint Merrill to permit the 
repurposing of the Roundtree Shopping Center which includes the continuation of retail 
uses, repurposing the vacant Walmart building into a climate-controlled self-storage 
facility and retail space, and associated site upgrades for a 30.407-acre site zoned GB – 
General Business, located at 2515 Ellsworth Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-18-
100-013, with the following conditions:  
 

1. The applicant shall address all outstanding comments from reviewing agencies 
prior to Final Site Plan approval.  

2. The applicant shall obtain all applicable internal and outside agency permits prior 
to construction.  

3. The applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the Township.  
4. Any other conditions based upon Planning Commission Discussion. 

 
Motion to deny:  
 
“I move to deny the preliminary site plan of DealPoint Merrill to permit the repurposing 
of the Roundtree Shopping Center which includes the continuation of retail uses, 
repurposing the vacant Walmart building into a climate-controlled self-storage facility and 
retail space, and associated site upgrades for a 30.407-acre site zoned GB – General 
Business, located at 2515 Ellsworth Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-18-100-013, 
for the following reasons: 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Fletcher Reyher, Planning & Development Coordinator  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Planning Department  
 
 



Project Name:

Location: 

Date:

Planning Director’s Report

Full Preliminary Site Plan Review # Rezoning
Sketch Preliminary Site Plan Review # Tentative Preliminary Plat
Administrative Preliminary Site Plan Review # Final Preliminary Plat
Detailed Engineering/Final Site Plan Review # Final Plat Process
Special Use Permit Planned Development Stage I
Public Hearing Planned Development Stage II

Contact / Reviewer
Consultants, Departments,

& Agencies
Approved

Approved 
with 

Conditions
Denied N/A

See email/letter
attached or comments 

below
Jason Iacoangeli,
Planning Director

Township Planning 
Department

Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates

Planning Consultant

OHM / Stantec Engineering Consultant

,
Fire Marshal

Township Fire
Department

Dave Bellers, 
Building Official

Township Building 
Department

Brian McCleery, 
Deputy Assessor

Township Assessing 
Department

Scott Westover, 
Engineering Manager

Ypsilanti Community 
Utilities Authority

Gary Streight, Project 
Manager

Washtenaw County Road 
Commission 

Theresa Marsik,
Stormwater Engineer

Washtenaw County Water 
Resources Commission

James Drury, Permit 
Agent

Michigan Department of 
Transportation

Planning Director’s Recommended Action: 



 
 

Benjamin R. Carlisle, President   Douglas J. Lewan, Executive Vice President   John L. Enos, Vice President 
David Scurto, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal   R. Donald Wortman, Principal 

Paul Montagno, Principal,   Megan Masson-Minock, Principal,    Laura Kreps, Senior Associate 
Richard K. Carlisle, Past President/Senior Principal 

 Date:  October 27, 2023 
             November 27, 2023 
 

 

Preliminary Site Plan and Special Conditional Use Review 
For 

Ypsilanti Township, Michigan 
 
 
 

 
Applicant:  DealPoint Merrill 
  
Project Name: DealPoint Merrill – Self Storage 
  
Plan Date: October 9, 2023 
   
Location: 2515 Ellsworth Road  
  
Zoning: GB, General Business  
    
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan and Special Conditional Use Approval 
   
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

  
DealPoint Merrill has recently purchased the Roundtree shopping center.  Their purchase 
includes the vacant Walmart, the strip mall with Harbor Freight and Sallys Beauty Supply, and the 
strip mall that includes Lumber Liquidators.  The purchase does not include Taco Bell, Popeyes, 
and the strip mall with Cricket mobile.  
 
The Township has been in lengthy discussions with the applicant about the future plan of the 
site.  The Township and DealPoint Merrill have been cooperatively working together to repurpose 
the site to avoid a similar dilapidation such as Gault Village.  
 
The applicant is proposing to redevelop the shopping center through multiple phases.   
 
 
 



DealPoint Merrill Self-Storage 
October 27, 2023 

2 

Phase 1 includes:  
• Repurposing the vacant Walmart into 131,600 sq/ft self-storage facility and 

18,400 sq/ft of retail.  Retail portion for Phase 1 will be turned into “white box” 
until a tenant(s) is secured;  

• Façade improvements to the former Walmart;  
• Parking lot repairs and repaving;  
• Site landscaping improvements;  
• License plate readers;  
• Site lighting upgrades; and 
• Removing 27,400 sq/ft of existing impervious parking area and repurposing as 

landscaping and pedestrian improvements.   
  
Phase 2 includes:  

• Façade updates to the remaining commercial portions of the site; and 
• Retail outlot development in existing parking lot of the vacant Walmart. 

 
Please note that the Planning Commission is only considering Phase 1 of the redevelopment.  
Phase 2 will come in as a separate site plan once more details of Phase 2 are determined. The 
applicant is proposing this redevelopment under the recently adopted Adaptive Reuse 
Ordinance. More details are listed below.  
 
Location of Subject Site: 

Aerial Image of Subject Site and Vicinity 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DealPoint Merrill Self-Storage 
October 27, 2023 

3 

 
Current Use of Subject Site: 
 
Vacant Walmart and Strip Commercial  
 
Current Zoning: 
 
GB, General Business  
 
Proposed Use of Subject Property: 
 
Self-Storage and Strip Commercial  
 
Adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:  
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North RM, LD Multiple Family Low Density  Multiple Family / Single Family  
South RC, Regional Corridor  Vacant   
East RC, Regional Corridor and GB, General Business  Strip Commercial  
West RM, MD Multiple Family Medium Density  Multiple Family    
 
ADAPTIVE REUSE ORDINANCE 

 
The Township recently adopted an Adaptive Reuse Ordinance to deal with properties such as the 
former Walmart.  The ordinance permits flexibility in zoning in order to maintain viability of these 
large underutilized or vacant properties.  
 
Sites zoned GB, General Business are permitted as a Special Conditional Use in the if they conform 
to the requirements set forth in section 1167 (Adaptive Reuse Ordinance) of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  
 
Section 1167:  
 

1. Qualifying Criteria.  To encourage and incentivize the adaptive reuse of buildings, this 
section permits a greater allowance of land uses and allows specific zoning relaxations 
than the underlying zoning district. The provisions of this section are intended to modify 
the standards otherwise applied to the site by its underlying zoning district. Unless 
specifically modified by this chapter, all other standards adopted shall apply. 
Projects must meet the following criteria to be an eligible adaptive reuse project:    

a. Project site shall be located in a NB, Neighborhood Commercial, GB, General 
Commercial, or Regional Commercial Form-Based district or the adaptive reuse of 
a civic building or public school building in any district.  

b. Applies to any building that is at least 20 years old and that was constructed in 
accordance with building and zoning codes in effect at the time of construction. 



DealPoint Merrill Self-Storage 
October 27, 2023 

4 

c. The project results in a change of use in all or a portion of the existing building. 
d. Existing building may not be destroyed by any means to the extent of more than 

fifty (50) percent of its replacement cost. 
 
CWA Comment: The project meets these qualifying criteria.  
 

2. Specific conditions: 
a. The following site elements must be brought into compliance:  

i. Parking lot pavement/repairs 
ii. Lighting as set forth in Section  

iii. Landscaping as set forth in Section  
 
CWA Comment:  The applicant is making significant improvements to the site including removing 
27,400 sq/ft of existing impervious parking area and repurposing that area as landscaping and 
pedestrian improvements.   In addition, the applicant is providing other site improvements 
including overall site landscaping and site lighting. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None   
 
PARKING 

 
Self-storage is a very low parking intense use.  Converting most of Walmart to self-storage use, 
caused the Roundtree shopping center to be greatly overparked.  We worked with the applicant 
to remove as much excess parking as possible.  The remaining parking is sufficient.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
SETBACKS AND HEIGHT 

 
Other than façade improvements, the applicant does not propose any physical changes to the 
buildings on site as part of the first phase.  Subsequent phases that propose additional buildings 
will be reviewed under a future site plan. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
SITE ACCESS, CIRCULATION, and TRAFFIC 

 
The applicant does not propose any changes to site access, and minimal changes to site 
circulation by removing parking areas and landscaping.  Self-storage is a very low traffic use.  
Converting the use from Walmart to a self-storage will reduce site access and traffic to the site 
than what existed when the site was used as a Walmart. In addition, the applicant is making 
repairs to the parking lot.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 



DealPoint Merrill Self-Storage 
October 27, 2023 

5 

SCREENING & LANDSCAPING 
 
The applicant is making significant improvements to overall site landscaping and screening 
including:  

• Adding parking lot landscaping. 
• Removing 27,400 sq/ft of existing impervious parking area and repurposing as 

landscaping and pedestrian improvements.   
 
Existing screening along Ellsworth is sufficient.  
 
Trash and Recycling Containers: 
 
The applicant is screening the trash enclosure with a masonry screen wall. 
 
Equipment Screening: 
 
The applicant has indicated rooftop equipment screening.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
LIGHTING 

 
The applicant will improve site lighting with new pole light and replace existing wall packs with 
new LED fixtures.     
 
Items to be Addressed:  None     
 
ELEVATIONS AND FLOORPLANS 

 
The applicant has provided elevations and floor plan (on site plan).  The applicant proposes new 
paint and new signage.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None     
 
SPECIAL CONDITIONAL USE 

 
The Planning Commission shall review the particular circumstances and facts of each proposed 
use in terms of the following standards and required findings, and with respect to any additional 
standards set forth in this Ordinance. The Planning Commission, either as part of its final decision 
or in its recommendation, shall find and report adequate data, information, and evidence 
showing that the proposed use meets all required standards and:   
 

1. Will be harmonious, and in accordance with the objectives, intent, and purpose of this 
Ordinance. 



DealPoint Merrill Self-Storage 
October 27, 2023 

6 

2. Will be compatible with a natural environment and existing and future land uses in the 
vicinity.  

3. Will be compatible with the Township master plans. 
4. Will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, such as highways, 

streets, police and fire protection, drainage ways and structures, refuse disposal, or that 
the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be 
able to provide adequately for such services 

5. Will not be detrimental, hazardous, or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses, 
persons, property, or the public welfare. 

6. Will not create additional requirements at public costs for public facilities and services 
that will be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

 
We find that provided the additional information provided that the site complies with the 
required standards set forth in Section 1003: 

1. The conversion of the vacant, underutilized building and site, into a viable long-term 
committed use advances numerous township Master Plan and other township policies 
and adds long-term stability to the site.  

2. The conversion of the vacant, underutilized building and site, into a viable long-term 
committed use is consistent with the intent and purpose of the recently adopted Adaptive 
Reuse Ordinance.   

3. The conversion of the vacant, underutilized building and site, into a viable long-term 
committed use rather than tearing the building down is an environmental best-practice.  

4. The repurposed site can be adequately served by essential public facilities and services. 
5. The repurposing and stabilization of the site will not be detrimental, hazardous, or 

disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses, persons, property, or the public welfare. 
6. The repurposing and stabilization of the site will not create additional requirements at 

public costs for public facilities and services that will be detrimental to the economic 
welfare of the community. 

7. The site improvements including removing impervious surface, landscape improvements, 
and applicable lighting improvements improves the site conditions and bring the site into 
zoning compliance.  

8. The façade improvement will add value and stabilization to the site.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Overall we strongly support the proposed repurpose of the site, and find that the required 
standards have been met.  We recommend Special Conditional Use and preliminary site plan 
approval.   

 









CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT
BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION
222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198

October 27, 2023

Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

RE: Preliminary (non-residential) Site Plan Review #1

Project Name:  DealPoint Merrill Self Storage
Project Location:  2515 Ellsworth Rd. Ypsilanti, MI 48197
Project No: 22-074
Plan Date:  10/09/20223
Applicable Codes: IFC 2018
Architect: LH2 Architecture, LLC
Architect Address: 5909 W Loop S, Suite 230 Bellaire, TX 77401

Status of Review

Status of review: Approved as Submitted

Both pages were reviewed.

Site Coverage - Access

Comments: Complies with IFC 2018

Sincerely,

  Steve Wallgren, Fire Marshal
  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department
  CFPS, CFI I







NATIVE LOW PRAIRIE  NO MOW AREA, TYP.

CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN
WALKING PATH

TURF GRASS
(TYP. ALL

AREAS NOT
NOTED FOR

NATIVE
PRAIRIE)

ALL EDGES AROUND THE
WALKING PATH AND
PARKING AREA SHALL HAVE
A MOW STRIP

CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN PLAZA
SPACE WITH BENCH SEATING AND
FIXED IN PLACE TABLES AND
CHAIRS. AREA WILL BE FRAMED
WITH ENHANCED LANDSCAPING.

EVERGREEN TREE, TYP.

CANOPY TREE, TYP.

+/-13 FT

+/- 6 FT

PARKING LOT ISLAND
LANDSCAPE, TYP.

PARKING LOT ISLAND
LANDSCAPE, TYP.

CANOPY TREE 26
-

EVERGREEN TREE 7
-

SMALL EVERGREEN TREE 8
-

MEDIUM DECIDUOUS SHRUBS 55
-

LARGE DECIDUOUS SHRUBS 59
-

EVERGREEN SHRUBS 16
-

ORNAMENTAL GRASS 66
-

NATIVE LOW PRAIRIE NO-MOW AREA 13,878 SF
-

PERENNIALS AND GROUNDCOVER 725 SF
-

CONCEPT PLANT SCHEDULE

CANOPY TREE 26
-

EVERGREEN TREE 7
-

SMALL EVERGREEN TREE 8
-

MEDIUM DECIDUOUS SHRUBS 55
-

LARGE DECIDUOUS SHRUBS 59
-

EVERGREEN SHRUBS 16
-

ORNAMENTAL GRASS 66
-

NATIVE LOW PRAIRIE NO-MOW AREA 13,878 SF
-

PERENNIALS AND GROUNDCOVER 725 SF
-

CONCEPT PLANT SCHEDULE

SE
LF

 S
TO

R
AG

E
YP

SI
LA

N
TI

, M
I

©

SE
LF

 S
TO

R
AG

E
YP

SI
LA

N
TI

, M
I

C
O

N
C

EP
T

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

AM
EN

IT
Y 

AR
EA

EX1

NTS

NORTH

ELLSWORTH ROAD

OVERALL SITE

** NOTE PARKING LOT ISLAND LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS SHOWN ARE TYPICAL LEVEL OF
LANDSCAPE FOR ENTIRE PARKING LOT. ENTIRE PARKING LOT NOT SHOWN IN THESE
DRAWINGS BUT WILL BE PROVIDED AT FINAL DESIGN. IN ADDITION TO THE PARKING
LOT LANDSCAPE, CODE ITEMS OUTLINED IN THE PLANNING DIRECTORS REPORT
(STREET YARD, GENERAL LANDSCAPE, PARKING LOT, STORMWATER) DATED
10/31/2023 WILL BE PROVIDED.







lettieh
Typewritten Text
 Storefront this area installed as part of Phase 2

lettieh
Typewritten Text
Note: Screening of rooftop equipment, existing and proposed,will be provided.

lettieh
Typewritten Text
Existing Conditions

lettieh
Typewritten Text
Proposed Facade Improvements     New Paint     New Signage     HVAC Screening     

lettieh
Image





©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
IN

G
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

To: DealPoint Merrill, LLC a Delaware limited liability company; First American Title Insurance
Company):

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes Items  1, 2, 3, 4,
6(a)(1), 6(b), 7(a), 7(b)(1), 7(c), 8, 9, 13, 14, 16, 17, and 19 of Table A thereof. The fieldwork was
completed on October 10, 2023.

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
      Mark Vander Veen, P.S. No. 4001056778

Date:

(PER FIRST AMERICAN TITLE COMMITMENT NO.: NCS-1134441-HHLV, WITH
COMMITMENT DATE: SEPTEMBER 14, 2023)

Beginning at the North 1/4 corner of fractional Section 18, Town 3 South, Range 7 East, Ypsilanti
Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence South 88 degrees 32 minutes 30 seconds East
1344.96 feet along the North line of said fractional Section 18 and the centerline of Ellsworth
Road; thence South 01 degrees 27 minutes 30 seconds West 909.11 feet; thence South 74
degrees 51 minutes 31 seconds West 48.79 feet; thence South 01 degrees 27 minutes 30
seconds West 351.30 feet; thence South 67 degrees 00 minutes 41 seconds West 174.18 feet;
thence North 18 degrees 41 minutes 56 seconds West 343.11 feet; thence North 87 degrees 57
minutes 17 seconds West 60.88 feet; thence South 74 degrees 51 minutes 31 seconds West
343.32 feet; thence North 88 degrees 32 minutes 30 seconds West 600.00 feet; thence North 01
degrees 54 minutes 21 seconds West 1080.00 feet; thence North 04 degrees 05 minutes 15
seconds West 43.30 feet; thence South 89 degrees 25 minutes 22 seconds East 36.05 feet to
the point of beginning, being a part of the North 1/2 of fractional Section 18, Town 3 South,
Range 7 East, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan;

Excepting therefrom the following described parcel:

Commencing at the North 1/4 corner of fractional Section 18, Town 3 South, Range 7 East,
Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence South 88 degrees 32 minutes 30
seconds East 986.91 feet along the North line of said Section 18 and the centerline of Ellsworth
Road to a point of beginning; thence continuing South 88 degrees 32 minutes 30 seconds East
275.00 feet along the North line of said Section 18 and the centerline of Ellsworth Road; thence
South 01 degrees 27 minutes 30 seconds West 250.00 feet; thence North 88 degrees 32 minutes
30 seconds West 275.00 feet; thence North 01 degrees 27 minutes 30 seconds East 250.00 feet
to the point of beginning, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of fractional Section 18, Town 3 South,
Range 7 East, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan;

Also excepting therefrom the following:

Commencing at the North 1/4 corner of fractional Section 18, Town 3 South, Range 7 East,
Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence South 88 degrees 32 minutes 30
seconds East 690.91 feet along the North line of Section 18 and the centerline of Ellsworth Road
to a point of beginning; thence continuing South 88 degrees 32 minutes 30 seconds East 250.00
feet along the North line of said Section 18 and the Centerline of Ellsworth Road; thence South
01 degrees 27 minutes 30 seconds West 250.00 feet; thence North 88 degrees 32 minutes 30
seconds West 250.00 feet; thence North 01 degrees 27 minutes 30 seconds East 250.00 feet to
the point of beginning, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of fractional Section 18, Town 3 South,
Range 7 East, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan;

Also excepting therefrom the following:

Commencing at the North 1/4 corner of fractional Section 18, Town 3 South, Range 7 East,
Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence South 88 degrees 32 minutes 30
seconds East 353.59 feet along the North line of said Section 18 and the centerline of Ellsworth
Road to a point of beginning; thence continuing South 88 degrees 32 minutes 30 seconds East
241.00 feet along said North line of Section 18 and said centerline of Ellsworth Road; thence
South 01 degrees 27 minutes 30 seconds West 250.00 feet; thence North 88 degrees 32 minutes
30 seconds West 241.00 feet; thence North 01 degrees 27 minutes 30 seconds East 250.00 feet
to the point of beginning, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of fractional Section 18, Town 3 South,
Range 7 East, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan.

Easement Parcel 1:

Together with a non-exclusive easement(s) as created, limited and defined by instrument dated
September 23, 1991, recorded October 10, 1991 in Liber 2544, Page 239, Washtenaw County
Records.

Easement Parcel 2:

Together with a non-exclusive easement(s) as created, limited and defined by instrument dated
December 02, 1993, recorded December 08, 1993 in Liber 2903, Page 54, Washtenaw County
Records.

R

Know what's below.
       Call before you dig.



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
IN

G
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1). This survey was prepared using First American Title Insurance Company Commitment No.
NCS-1134441-HHLV with an effective date of September 14, 2023.

2). Current Zoning Standards based on Zoning Report prepared by PARTNER Engineering and
Science, Inc..
- Zoning Designation: Parcel is currently zoned GB (General Business)
- Maximum Height  2 Stories (allowed) 1 Stories (existing)

25 ft (allowed) 23.9 ft (existing)

- Setbacks    Front - 20 ft (allowed) 145 ft (existing)
Side - 10 ft (allowed)* 61 ft (existing)

*or 50 ft if lot borders a residential zoning district or street
Note: Property not abutting Residential District or Street along West
Property Line.

Rear - 20 ft (allowed)* 89.2 ft (existing)
*or 50 ft if lot borders a residential zoning district or street

Note: Property not abutting Residential District or Street along West
Property Line.

- Total Parking Required
(2321 Ellsworth Rd.):

1 space per each 250 sf of usable retail floor area for the first 50,000 sf.
1 space for each 275 sf for the next 50,000 to 450,000 sf of usable 
floor area
Total Required Parking Spaces = 427

(2515 Ellsworth Rd.):
1 space per each 325 sf of gross floor area
Total Required Parking Spaces = 451

- Total Parking Existing:
(2321 Ellsworth Rd.):

Regular Parking Spaces: 532
EV Charging Spaces:   6
Handicapped Parking Spaces: 20
Total Provided Parking Spaces: 558

(2515 Ellsworth Rd.):
Regular Parking Spaces: 604
EV Charging Spaces:   0
Handicapped Parking Spaces: 15
Total Provided Parking Spaces: 619

3). Said described property is located within an area having a Zone Designation X by the
Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, on Flood Insurance Rate Map No. 26161C0407E,
with a date of identification of April 3, 2012, for Community Number 260542, in Washtenaw
County, State of Michigan, which is the current Flood Insurance Rate Map for the community in
which said property is situated

4). The parcel herein described has 1177 regular parking spaces and 38 Handicap spaces. Total
= 1215 spaces

5). There was no evidence of current earth moving work, building construction or building
additions as of the date the field work was performed.

6). There is no evidence of changes that will be made to the existing right-of-way lines or
sidewalks in the near future.

7). Property contains 1,324,630 square feet or 30.41 acres.

8). The property described hereon is the same as the property described in First American Title
Insurance Company Commitment No. NCS-1134441-HHLV with an effective  date of September
14, 2023, and that all easements, covenants and restrictions referenced in said title commitment
or apparent from a physical inspection of the site or otherwise known to have been plotted
hereon or otherwise noted as to their effect on the subject property.

7. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Deed of Deputy
State Highway Commissioner" recorded as Deed Liber 1039, Page 480 of Official Records. (NOT
PLOTTABLE)

8. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Right of Way"
recorded as Liber 1427, Page 793 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

9. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Agreement -
Easement - Restrictions" recorded  as Liber 1432, Page 931. "Partial Disclaimer of Right of Way"
recorded in Liber 3975, Page 409 of Official Records. (BLANKET)

10. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Right of Way"
recorded as Liber 1459 Page 67 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

11. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Grant of an
Easement for Drainage" recorded  as Liber 1714, Page 88 of Official Records. (NOT
PLOTTABLE)

12. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Grant for an
Easement for Drainage" recorded  as Liber 1722, Page 327 of Official Records. (DOES NOT
AFFECT THIS PROPERTY.)

13. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Warranty Deed"
recorded as Liber 2541, Page 515 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

14. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Easement and
License Agreement" recorded  as Liber 2544, Page 239 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

15. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Underground
Easement (Right of Way)" recorded  as Liber 2572, Page 918 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

16. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Warranty Deed"
recorded as Deed Liber 2637, Page 218 and Deed Liber 2849, Page 638 of Official Records.
(PLOTTED)

17. Storm Drainage Easement granted to the Board of County Road Commissioners of the
County of Washtenaw disclosed by instrument recorded in Liber 2657, Page 915, Washtenaw
County Records. (PLOTTED)

18. Public Road Easement granted to the Board of County Road Commissioners of the County
of Washtenaw disclosed by instrument recorded in Liber 2657, Page 925, Washtenaw County
Records. (PLOTTED)

19. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Declaration of
Restrictive Covenant" recorded  as Liber 2849, Page 651 of Official Records. (NOT
PLOTTABLE)

20. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Surface and
Storm Water Drainage Easement Agreement" recorded  as Liber 2903, Page 37 and re-recorded
in Liber 2940, Page 1 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

21. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Easements and
Restrictions Agreement" recorded  as Liber 2903, Page 43 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

22. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Sanitary Sewer
Easement Agreement" recorded  as Liber 2903, Page 54 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

23. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Underground
Easement (Right of Way)" recorded  as Liber 3020, Page 745 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

24. Public Road Easement granted to the Board of Road Commissioners of the County of
Washtenaw disclosed by instrument recorded in Liber 3836, Page 47, Washtenaw County
Records. (PLOTTED)

25. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Amended and
Restated Declaration of Easement and Agreement for Maintenance" recorded May 27, 2004 as
Liber 4394, Page 923 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

26. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Public Utility
Easement" recorded March 08, 2007 as Liber 4611, Page 532 of Official Records.  (PLOTTED)

27. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Temporary
Construction Easement Agreement" recorded May 29, 2014 as Liber 5039, Page 507 of Official
Records. (AGREEMENT EXPIRED)

28. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Utility Easement
(Sanitary Sewer Lines)" recorded September 04, 2015 as Liber 5113, Page 779 of Official
Records. (PLOTTED)

29. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Utility Easement
(Water Service Lines)" recorded September 04, 2015 as Liber 5113, Page 780 of Official
Records. (PLOTTED)

30. The terms and provisions contained in the document entitled "Restrictive Covenant
Agreement" recorded October 16, 2015 as Liber 5119, Page 965 of Official Records. (NOT
PLOTTABLE)

31. The terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "DTE Electric
Company Underground Easement (Right of Way)" recorded November 20, 2019 as Liber 5330,
Page 147 of Official Records. (PLOTTED)

37. All of the terms and provisions set forth and contained in that certain Short Form Lease
between Hutchens/Michigan Limited Partnership, by SNA, Inc., a general partner, DBA Alera,
Lessor, and Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., Lessee, a memorandum of which is recorded in Liber 2774,
Page 87. (NOT PLOTTABLE)

As affected by "Amendment to Short Form Lease" recorded in Liber 5119, Page 966. (NOT
PLOTTABLE)



Page 1 of 2

Date:11/6/2023

LL-17580-R-1 (EXT).AGI

Layout designs are based on information provided by the client and are only to be used as USLED recommendations for luminaire placement.  Determination of luminaire application within existing or new field conditions is the
responsibility of the engineer and/or architect.
The illumination level calculations within this layout are of those luminaires that have been laboratory tested under controlled conditions in accordance with Illuminating Engineering Society standard practices.  Performance of
any USLED luminaire may vary based on any varying field conditions.  Unless otherwise noted, calculations do not include landscaping, buildings, curbs, or any other architectural elements which may alter the results.

Prepared For:

Completed By:

Project Name:

Lapp

National LED

DPM Ypsilanti

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.7 3.6 4.3 4.7 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.7 2.4 3.3 4.1 4.5 4.8 4.8 4.3 3.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.7 3.6 4.3 4.6 4.7 4.7 4.6 4.3 3.6 2.7 1.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.8 2.5 3.3 4.0 4.5 4.5 4.6 4.5 4.0 3.3 2.5 1.8 1.3 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.9 1.2 1.6 2.2 2.8 3.4 3.8 4.0 4.0 3.8 3.4 2.8 2.2 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.4 1.8 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.3 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.7 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.3 2.1 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.8 1.1 1.5 1.9 2.4 2.8 3.1 3.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.7 0.9 1.3 1.7 2.3 3.0 3.6 4.0 3.8 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.7 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.7 3.5 4.2 4.6 4.5 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 1.1 1.5 2.1 2.9 3.8 4.5 4.8 4.8 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 1.1 1.5 2.2 3.0 3.9 4.6 4.9 5.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 1.1 1.5 2.1 2.9 3.8 4.5 4.9 4.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.7 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.7 3.5 4.3 4.7 4.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.7 1.0 1.3 1.8 2.4 3.1 3.7 4.1 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.5 2.0 2.4 2.9 3.3 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.4 2.6 2.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.7 3.1 3.5 3.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.7 1.0 1.4 1.9 2.5 3.2 3.9 4.4 4.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.8 1.1 1.5 2.1 2.8 3.6 4.4 4.8 4.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.8 1.1 1.6 2.2 3.0 3.8 4.6 4.9 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.6 2.2 3.0 3.8 4.6 4.9 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.5 2.1 2.9 3.7 4.5 4.8 4.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.6 3.4 4.1 4.5 4.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.3 1.8 2.3 2.9 3.4 3.8 3.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.7 2.9 2.7 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.1 2.2 1.9 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.3 0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.9 2.6 3.2 4.5 6.2 7.0 7.1 7.1 6.7 5.7 4.7 3.8 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.6 2.4 2.9 3.6 4.1 4.9 5.8 5.7 5.7 5.1 4.4 3.4 2.6 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.5 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.5 5.1 5.6 5.5 6.0 5.5 4.8 4.0 3.2 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.1 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.4 3.1 4.1 5.3 6.8 8.1 8.9 8.9 8.9 8.6 7.6 6.2 5.0 3.9 3.1 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.6 3.0 3.6 4.6 5.9 7.3 8.5 9.1 9.0 9.0 8.2 6.9 5.4 4.2 3.3 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.8 3.4 4.1 5.0 6.0 6.8 7.3 7.1 7.3 6.8 5.9 5.0 4.0 3.3 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.7 3.8 3.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.2 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.9 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.7 3.5 4.5 5.9 7.6 9.1 9.7 9.7 9.6 9.5 8.4 6.8 5.3 4.0 3.2 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.6 3.1 3.9 5.1 6.7 8.3 9.4 9.7 9.6 9.7 9.0 7.5 5.8 4.5 3.5 3.0 2.7 2.7 3.0 3.6 4.5 5.7 6.9 8.0 8.6 8.4 8.6 8.0 6.9 5.6 4.4 3.4 2.8 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.3 4.6 4.4 4.7 4.6 4.4 4.1 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.8 4.9 6.4 8.1 9.5 9.8 9.9 9.8 9.6 8.9 7.2 5.6 4.2 3.2 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.6 3.2 4.1 5.5 7.2 8.8 9.6 9.8 9.8 9.7 9.3 7.9 6.2 4.8 3.7 3.1 2.8 2.8 3.1 3.8 4.8 6.3 7.9 9.1 9.4 9.3 9.4 9.1 7.8 6.2 4.8 3.7 3.0 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.5 4.2 5.0 5.7 6.1 5.9 6.1 5.8 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.3 1.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.8 4.9 6.3 8.0 9.3 9.7 10.2 10.0 9.5 8.7 7.0 5.3 3.9 3.0 2.4 2.1 2.1 2.4 2.9 3.9 5.3 6.9 8.5 9.3 9.9 10.1 9.6 9.1 7.7 6.0 4.5 3.5 2.9 2.7 2.7 3.1 3.9 5.1 6.7 8.4 9.4 9.7 9.7 9.6 9.4 8.3 6.6 5.1 3.9 3.0 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.7 3.2 4.1 5.2 6.3 7.3 7.8 7.6 7.8 7.3 6.3 5.2 4.2 3.4 2.9 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.5 2.8 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.2 3.6 4.2 5.2 6.7 8.2 9.5 9.8 9.9 9.9 9.5 8.8 7.2 5.6 4.2 3.3 2.7 2.4 2.4 2.6 3.2 4.1 5.5 7.2 8.8 9.5 9.7 9.8 9.6 9.2 7.8 6.2 4.7 3.7 3.0 2.8 2.8 3.1 3.8 4.9 6.5 8.2 9.2 9.7 10.1 9.7 9.2 8.1 6.4 4.9 3.6 2.9 2.5 2.3 2.4 2.8 3.5 4.6 6.0 7.5 8.7 9.1 8.9 9.2 8.7 7.4 5.9 4.6 3.5 2.8 2.3 2.0 1.5 1.4 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.5 3.8 3.7 3.7 3.6 3.7 3.9 4.4 5.1 6.3 7.8 9.1 9.6 9.4 9.6 9.3 8.3 6.8 5.2 4.0 3.2 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.6 3.1 4.0 5.1 6.7 8.3 9.2 9.3 9.4 9.4 8.8 7.4 5.8 4.5 3.6 3.1 2.9 2.9 3.3 4.0 5.2 6.7 8.4 9.4 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.4 8.3 6.6 5.1 3.9 3.1 2.6 2.5 2.6 3.0 3.8 5.0 6.6 8.2 9.3 9.5 9.5 9.5 9.3 8.1 6.5 5.0 3.8 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.4 2.9 3.5 4.1 4.6 5.0 4.9 5.2 5.0 4.7 4.4 4.2 4.2 4.4 4.9 5.8 7.0 8.0 8.6 8.4 8.7 8.2 7.2 6.0 4.7 3.7 3.0 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.6 3.0 3.7 4.7 5.9 7.2 8.1 8.4 8.3 8.3 7.6 6.5 5.2 4.2 3.4 3.0 2.8 2.9 3.3 3.9 4.9 6.3 7.8 9.0 9.4 9.2 9.4 9.0 7.7 6.1 4.7 3.6 2.9 2.5 2.4 2.5 2.9 3.7 4.9 6.5 8.1 9.1 9.7 10.0 9.6 9.2 8.1 6.4 4.8 3.7 2.8 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.1 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.2 2.8 3.6 4.5 5.4 6.2 6.7 6.6 6.9 6.5 5.9 5.4 4.8 4.5 4.5 4.7 5.2 5.9 6.5 6.9 6.8 7.0 6.6 5.9 5.1 4.2 3.4 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.9 3.4 4.1 5.0 5.8 6.5 6.8 6.7 6.7 6.2 5.4 4.6 3.9 3.3 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.7 4.5 5.6 6.8 7.8 8.3 8.1 8.3 7.8 6.7 5.5 4.4 3.5 2.9 2.5 2.5 2.6 3.1 3.9 5.1 6.8 8.4 9.4 9.6 9.8 9.6 9.3 8.2 6.7 5.1 4.0 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.7 2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.3 4.3 5.6 6.9 8.0 8.6 8.5 8.7 8.2 7.3 6.2 5.3 4.7 4.5 4.4 4.6 4.9 5.2 5.4 5.3 5.4 5.2 4.7 4.2 3.6 3.1 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.1 3.5 4.1 4.6 5.1 5.3 5.1 5.3 4.9 4.4 3.9 3.4 3.1 2.8 2.8 2.8 3.0 3.5 4.1 4.8 5.6 6.3 6.8 6.5 6.8 6.3 5.5 4.7 3.9 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.5 2.7 3.1 3.8 4.9 6.4 8.0 9.1 9.4 9.3 9.5 9.1 7.9 6.3 4.9 3.9 3.2 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.5 3.8 3.9 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.3 2.9 3.8 5.1 6.6 8.3 9.5 9.9 9.8 10.0 9.7 8.5 7.1 5.8 5.0 4.5 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.3 4.3 4.2 4.2 4.1 3.8 3.5 3.2 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.5 3.8 4.0 4.1 4.0 4.2 4.0 3.7 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.7 4.1 4.6 5.0 5.3 5.1 5.3 5.0 4.5 4.0 3.5 3.0 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.6 3.0 3.6 4.5 5.7 7.0 8.1 8.7 8.5 8.7 8.1 7.0 5.7 4.5 3.7 3.1 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.5 4.9 4.7 5.0 4.7 2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.3 4.3 5.7 7.4 9.1 10.1 10.4 10.5 10.4 10.3 9.2 7.6 6.2 5.1 4.5 4.1 3.9 3.8 3.7 3.6 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.3 3.5 3.4 3.2 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.7 3.9 4.1 4.3 4.2 4.3 4.1 3.8 3.5 3.1 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.8 3.3 4.0 4.9 5.8 6.6 7.1 6.9 7.1 6.6 5.8 4.9 4.1 3.4 3.1 2.9 3.0 3.3 3.8 4.5 5.3 6.0 6.5 6.3 6.7 6.4 4.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.9 3.6 4.5 6.0 7.6 9.3 10.3 10.8 11.1 10.7 10.2 9.1 7.5 6.1 5.0 4.4 4.0 3.7 3.5 3.5 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.8 3.6 3.8 3.6 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.5 4.1 4.6 5.1 5.5 5.3 5.5 5.1 4.6 4.1 3.6 3.2 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.6 4.3 5.4 6.6 7.6 8.2 8.1 8.4 8.1 7.7 6.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.4 3.0 3.6 4.2 5.2 6.7 8.3 10.0 10.9 11.0 11.0 10.9 10.6 9.4 7.9 6.4 5.3 4.6 4.2 3.9 3.8 3.6 3.4 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.7 3.5 3.6 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.7 4.0 4.3 4.1 4.3 4.0 3.7 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.9 4.8 6.1 7.7 8.9 9.4 9.2 9.5 9.3 8.3 6.9 5.7 3.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.7 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0 2.4 3.0 3.6 4.3 4.9 5.8 7.1 8.5 10.0 11.0 11.1 10.7 10.8 10.3 9.0 7.5 6.2 5.3 4.7 4.4 4.3 4.2 4.1 3.8 3.8 3.6 3.5 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.2 3.4 3.6 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.3 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.6 3.8 4.0 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.4 3.5 3.3 3.4 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.8 3.3 4.0 5.1 6.6 8.2 9.4 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.6 8.7 7.0 5.5 4.3 3.4 1.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.9 2.4 3.0 3.7 4.5 5.2 5.8 6.6 7.7 8.6 9.6 10.3 10.5 10.0 10.0 9.2 8.1 6.9 5.9 5.3 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.5 4.6 4.4 4.0 3.7 3.3 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.4 3.7 4.1 4.4 4.3 4.4 4.3 4.1 3.8 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.4 4.7 4.6 4.7 4.5 4.3 3.9 3.5 3.2 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.1 2.9 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.8 4.9 6.4 8.1 9.2 9.7 10.1 9.8 9.3 8.4 6.7 5.2 3.9 3.0 2.4 1.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6 2.2 2.9 3.7 4.6 5.6 6.4 7.1 7.7 8.5 8.9 9.2 9.4 9.3 8.6 8.5 7.8 7.0 6.2 5.6 5.2 5.2 5.3 5.6 5.9 6.2 5.9 6.0 5.6 5.0 4.4 3.7 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.9 4.5 5.1 5.6 5.5 5.7 5.5 5.1 4.5 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.9 2.9 3.0 3.3 3.7 4.3 4.9 5.4 5.9 5.8 5.8 5.6 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.4 3.0 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.9 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.6 3.1 3.9 5.1 6.5 8.2 9.4 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.4 8.5 6.9 5.3 4.0 3.1 2.6 2.2 2.1 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.7 1.0 1.4 1.9 2.5 3.3 4.4 5.6 6.9 7.9 8.7 8.9 9.6 9.5 9.1 8.7 8.2 7.3 7.1 6.5 5.9 5.5 5.2 5.1 5.4 5.9 6.6 7.3 7.7 7.5 7.5 7.1 6.3 5.3 4.3 3.5 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.1 3.7 4.5 5.5 6.4 7.1 7.1 7.3 7.0 6.4 5.5 4.6 3.8 3.3 3.1 3.0 3.1 3.5 4.1 5.0 5.9 6.8 7.4 7.3 7.4 7.1 6.4 5.4 4.5 3.7 3.2 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.4 3.2 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.6 4.7 6.1 7.6 8.9 9.3 9.2 9.4 9.1 7.9 6.4 5.0 3.9 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.7 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.7 3.8 5.1 6.6 8.3 9.4 10.1 10.2 10.7 10.2 9.3 8.2 7.3 6.3 5.9 5.5 5.1 4.8 4.8 5.0 5.6 6.5 7.7 8.8 9.3 9.0 9.1 8.6 7.6 6.1 4.8 3.8 3.1 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.7 3.2 4.0 5.1 6.5 7.8 8.6 8.7 8.8 8.6 7.7 6.4 5.1 4.1 3.5 3.2 3.1 3.2 3.7 4.5 5.6 6.9 8.1 8.9 8.8 8.9 8.6 7.7 6.3 5.0 4.1 3.4 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.7 3.9 4.1 3.9 4.0 3.8 3.4 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.7 3.3 4.2 5.3 6.5 7.6 8.3 8.1 8.2 7.8 6.8 5.6 4.5 3.6 3.1 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.4 3.8 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 1.1 1.6 2.1 3.0 4.1 5.6 7.4 9.2 10.1 10.6 10.7 11.0 10.7 9.4 8.0 6.7 5.6 5.1 4.7 4.4 4.4 4.5 4.9 5.7 7.0 8.4 9.6 9.9 9.7 9.6 9.5 8.5 6.8 5.3 4.0 3.2 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.8 3.4 4.3 5.7 7.3 8.7 9.4 9.5 9.4 9.4 8.7 7.2 5.6 4.4 3.6 3.2 3.1 3.3 3.8 4.8 6.1 7.7 9.0 9.6 9.5 9.5 9.4 8.5 7.0 5.5 4.3 3.5 3.1 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.5 4.0 4.5 4.9 5.2 5.0 5.2 4.8 4.3 3.8 3.2 2.7 2.4 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.6 4.4 5.3 6.0 6.5 6.4 6.6 6.2 5.5 4.7 3.9 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.8 3.0 3.3 3.8 4.3 4.8 5.2 5.4 5.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1

0.7 1.1 1.6 2.2 3.0 4.2 5.7 7.6 9.3 10.2 10.8 11.0 11.0 10.6 9.2 7.6 6.2 5.0 4.5 4.1 3.9 3.9 4.1 4.7 5.6 7.0 8.5 9.7 10.0 10.2 9.9 9.6 8.7 7.0 5.3 4.0 3.1 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.7 3.4 4.4 5.8 7.4 8.9 9.5 9.9 9.7 9.5 9.0 7.4 5.8 4.4 3.6 3.1 3.0 3.3 3.8 4.9 6.3 7.9 9.1 9.6 9.9 9.8 9.5 8.8 7.3 5.7 4.4 3.5 3.1 2.9 3.0 3.4 4.0 4.8 5.6 6.3 6.8 6.6 6.7 6.2 5.4 4.6 3.7 3.0 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.1 4.5 4.9 4.7 4.9 4.6 4.2 3.8 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.8 3.0 3.4 4.0 4.7 5.5 6.2 6.6 6.7 7.1 6.9 4.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.7 1.0 1.5 2.1 3.0 4.2 5.7 7.6 9.3 10.1 10.7 11.0 10.6 10.2 8.9 7.3 5.8 4.6 4.0 3.6 3.5 3.6 3.9 4.5 5.5 6.9 8.4 9.5 9.9 10.2 9.9 9.4 8.6 7.0 5.3 3.9 3.0 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.6 3.3 4.3 5.7 7.4 8.9 9.4 9.9 9.8 9.3 8.7 7.3 5.7 4.4 3.5 3.0 2.9 3.0 3.6 4.7 6.1 7.8 9.1 9.6 9.9 9.9 9.3 8.5 7.0 5.5 4.3 3.5 3.1 3.0 3.2 3.6 4.5 5.6 6.8 7.8 8.4 8.2 8.3 7.8 6.7 5.4 4.2 3.3 2.6 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.8 3.0 3.3 3.5 3.4 3.6 3.5 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.7 4.6 5.7 6.9 7.8 8.3 8.2 8.5 8.0 7.1 5.9 3.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.8 1.2 1.6 2.3 3.1 4.2 5.7 7.5 9.3 10.1 10.3 10.6 10.6 10.2 8.8 7.2 5.8 4.6 4.1 3.7 3.6 3.6 3.9 4.5 5.5 6.8 8.3 9.6 9.8 9.7 9.7 9.5 8.5 6.9 5.3 4.0 3.2 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.8 3.4 4.4 5.7 7.4 8.9 9.4 9.5 9.5 9.4 8.8 7.3 5.7 4.5 3.6 3.2 3.1 3.3 3.8 4.8 6.1 7.7 9.1 9.5 9.4 9.6 9.4 8.6 7.1 5.5 4.3 3.6 3.2 3.2 3.4 4.0 5.0 6.3 7.9 9.0 9.5 9.3 9.4 9.0 7.8 6.2 4.7 3.6 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.4 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.7 3.2 4.0 5.1 6.5 8.0 9.1 9.5 9.3 9.5 9.0 7.8 6.3 4.9 3.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.9 1.2 1.7 2.2 3.0 4.0 5.3 6.9 8.5 9.6 9.8 10.0 10.1 9.5 8.1 6.7 5.5 4.5 4.0 3.7 3.5 3.6 3.8 4.3 5.1 6.2 7.6 8.8 9.3 9.1 9.3 8.8 7.8 6.3 4.9 3.8 3.0 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.2 4.1 5.2 6.7 8.1 9.0 8.9 9.0 8.9 8.1 6.6 5.3 4.2 3.5 3.1 3.0 3.2 3.6 4.4 5.6 7.1 8.4 9.1 9.0 9.1 8.8 7.8 6.4 5.1 4.0 3.4 3.2 3.2 3.5 4.2 5.3 6.8 8.5 9.5 9.8 9.8 9.7 9.4 8.3 6.7 5.1 3.8 2.9 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.7 3.3 4.2 5.5 7.0 8.7 9.5 9.8 9.7 9.7 9.4 8.1 6.5 4.9 3.7 2.7 1.6 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.9 1.2 1.6 2.2 2.8 3.7 4.8 6.0 7.2 8.3 8.5 8.8 8.8 8.3 7.3 6.3 5.4 4.6 4.1 3.8 3.6 3.6 3.7 4.1 4.7 5.5 6.4 7.3 7.9 7.7 7.9 7.4 6.5 5.4 4.3 3.5 2.9 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.6 3.0 3.7 4.6 5.7 6.7 7.5 7.5 7.7 7.5 6.7 5.7 4.7 3.8 3.3 3.0 2.9 3.0 3.4 4.0 4.9 6.0 7.0 7.6 7.6 7.6 7.3 6.5 5.5 4.5 3.6 3.1 2.9 3.0 3.3 4.0 5.1 6.6 8.3 9.3 9.8 10.2 9.8 9.3 8.2 6.5 4.9 3.6 2.7 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.4 3.0 4.0 5.3 6.9 8.5 9.4 9.9 10.2 9.7 9.2 8.0 6.2 4.6 3.3 2.3 1.6 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.9 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.7 3.4 4.2 5.1 6.0 6.7 7.0 7.3 7.4 7.1 6.6 6.0 5.4 4.8 4.4 4.1 3.9 3.8 3.7 3.9 4.2 4.8 5.3 5.8 6.2 6.0 6.2 5.8 5.2 4.5 3.8 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.3 3.9 4.6 5.3 5.9 5.8 6.0 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.0 3.5 3.0 2.8 2.8 2.9 3.1 3.6 4.2 4.9 5.5 6.0 5.9 6.0 5.8 5.2 4.6 3.9 3.3 3.0 2.9 3.1 3.5 4.2 5.4 6.9 8.5 9.6 9.8 9.8 9.8 9.5 8.4 6.7 5.1 3.8 2.9 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 2.1 2.5 3.1 4.1 5.4 7.1 8.8 9.6 9.9 9.9 9.8 9.3 8.1 6.4 4.7 3.4 2.5 1.9 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2

1.0 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.1 3.7 4.4 5.0 5.6 5.8 6.1 6.4 6.4 6.2 6.0 5.7 5.3 4.9 4.5 4.2 4.0 3.8 3.7 3.9 4.1 4.4 4.6 4.8 4.5 4.7 4.5 4.1 3.7 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.5 4.4 4.6 4.5 4.2 3.8 3.4 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.5 3.9 4.3 4.6 4.5 4.5 4.4 4.1 3.7 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.8 3.0 3.4 4.1 5.1 6.4 8.0 9.3 9.6 9.4 9.6 9.2 8.0 6.3 4.8 3.7 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.9 5.1 6.6 8.3 9.4 9.7 9.5 9.6 9.0 7.7 6.0 4.5 3.4 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2

1.0 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.9 3.5 4.0 4.4 4.9 5.1 5.4 5.9 6.1 6.3 6.3 6.2 5.9 5.6 5.2 4.7 4.3 3.9 3.7 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.7 3.8 3.5 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.4 3.6 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.9 3.2 3.8 4.6 5.8 7.0 8.0 8.6 8.4 8.6 8.1 7.0 5.7 4.5 3.5 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.9 3.6 4.6 5.9 7.2 8.3 8.7 8.5 8.7 8.0 6.8 5.5 4.2 3.2 2.5 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2

0.8 1.0 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.9 3.3 3.8 4.2 4.6 4.8 5.2 5.8 6.2 6.6 6.9 6.8 6.6 6.3 5.9 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.6 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.1 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.5 4.1 4.9 5.8 6.6 7.1 6.9 7.1 6.6 5.9 5.0 4.1 3.4 2.9 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.3 4.1 5.0 5.9 6.7 7.1 7.0 7.1 6.6 5.8 4.9 4.0 3.2 2.5 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3

0.8 1.0 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.4 4.8 4.9 5.5 6.1 6.6 7.2 7.5 7.3 7.1 6.8 6.4 5.7 4.9 4.2 3.7 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.2 3.6 4.2 4.7 5.2 5.6 5.5 5.7 5.5 5.0 4.5 3.8 3.4 3.0 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.1 4.7 5.2 5.6 5.5 5.7 5.4 4.9 4.4 3.8 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3

0.8 1.0 1.3 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.8 4.3 4.9 5.4 5.5 6.1 6.6 7.2 7.7 7.8 7.6 7.3 6.9 6.6 6.0 5.0 4.3 3.8 3.4 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.2 3.5 3.8 4.2 4.5 4.4 4.7 4.6 4.4 4.1 3.7 3.5 3.2 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.8 4.1 4.3 4.3 4.6 4.5 4.4 4.1 3.8 3.3 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4

0.8 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.2 2.8 3.5 4.3 5.0 5.7 6.3 6.3 6.9 7.3 7.6 7.9 7.9 7.6 7.5 6.9 6.4 5.7 4.8 4.1 3.5 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.0 3.0 2.6 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.9 3.0 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.5 3.7 3.8 4.1 4.2 4.2 4.1 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.6 4.0 4.1 4.1 4.1 3.9 3.6 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.5 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4

0.8 1.1 1.4 1.9 2.4 3.1 4.1 5.1 6.2 7.1 7.8 7.9 8.5 8.7 8.8 8.7 8.5 7.9 7.5 7.0 6.7 6.0 5.1 4.3 3.9 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.2 3.4 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.4 3.3 3.3 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.5 3.7 3.5 3.7 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.5 4.0 4.2 4.4 4.5 4.3 4.3 4.2 3.9 3.6 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.9 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.2 3.7 4.0 4.2 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.1 4.0 3.6 3.1 2.7 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4

0.8 1.1 1.4 1.9 2.5 3.4 4.5 5.9 7.3 8.6 9.4 9.4 10.0 10.0 9.6 9.1 8.6 7.9 7.3 6.9 6.5 5.7 4.9 4.3 4.0 3.9 4.0 4.2 4.4 4.5 4.2 4.4 4.2 3.9 3.5 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.3 3.7 4.0 4.4 4.3 4.4 4.3 4.0 3.6 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.3 3.8 4.2 4.6 4.7 4.6 4.8 4.4 4.0 3.6 3.1 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.2 3.5 4.1 4.6 5.0 5.4 5.3 5.3 5.2 4.8 4.4 4.0 3.6 3.4 3.3 3.5 3.7 3.9 4.2 4.5 4.4 4.3 4.3 3.9 3.5 3.1 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.6 4.2 4.7 5.1 5.5 5.5 5.3 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.3 2.6 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.5

0.7 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.7 3.6 4.9 6.6 8.4 9.7 10.2 10.2 10.8 10.8 10.1 9.2 8.3 7.5 6.8 6.3 5.8 5.1 4.6 4.2 4.1 4.2 4.6 5.1 5.5 5.9 5.6 5.9 5.5 4.9 4.3 3.6 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.3 3.9 4.6 5.2 5.7 5.7 5.8 5.6 5.1 4.5 3.8 3.2 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.2 3.9 4.6 5.3 6.0 6.2 6.1 6.2 5.7 5.0 4.2 3.5 2.9 2.5 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.6 4.5 5.3 6.0 6.6 6.6 6.7 6.5 5.9 5.3 4.6 4.1 3.8 3.8 4.0 4.5 5.0 5.5 6.0 5.9 5.9 5.7 5.1 4.4 3.7 3.0 2.5 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.7 4.5 5.4 6.3 6.8 6.9 6.8 6.7 5.9 5.0 4.0 3.1 2.3 1.7 1.3 0.9 0.7 0.5

0.7 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.7 3.8 5.2 7.0 8.8 9.9 10.3 10.6 10.8 10.8 10.1 8.9 7.8 6.8 6.0 5.4 4.9 4.5 4.1 4.0 4.2 4.6 5.3 6.1 7.0 7.5 7.3 7.5 7.1 6.2 5.2 4.2 3.4 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.6 3.0 3.7 4.6 5.6 6.6 7.3 7.3 7.5 7.2 6.5 5.5 4.4 3.5 2.9 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.5 4.4 5.6 6.7 7.6 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.1 6.0 4.9 3.9 3.1 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.6 3.1 3.9 4.9 6.1 7.3 8.0 8.2 8.2 8.1 7.3 6.2 5.3 4.6 4.2 4.2 4.6 5.3 6.2 7.0 7.6 7.6 7.7 7.4 6.5 5.4 4.3 3.4 2.7 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.7 2.0 2.4 2.9 3.8 4.9 6.2 7.5 8.4 8.4 8.4 8.2 7.4 6.0 4.6 3.5 2.6 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.5

0.6 0.9 1.3 1.8 2.5 3.5 5.0 6.7 8.5 9.6 10.2 10.8 10.6 10.3 9.5 8.0 6.7 5.7 5.0 4.5 4.1 3.8 3.7 3.8 4.2 4.9 5.9 7.2 8.4 9.0 8.9 9.0 8.7 7.5 6.1 4.7 3.7 3.0 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.2 4.1 5.3 6.7 8.0 8.8 8.7 9.0 8.8 7.8 6.4 5.0 3.9 3.1 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.6 3.0 3.8 5.0 6.4 7.9 8.9 9.0 9.1 9.1 8.5 7.0 5.5 4.2 3.2 2.6 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.8 2.1 2.5 3.2 4.1 5.5 7.0 8.5 9.3 9.4 9.4 9.4 8.5 7.1 5.9 5.0 4.6 4.6 5.1 6.0 7.2 8.4 9.1 8.9 9.0 8.8 7.8 6.3 4.9 3.7 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.3 3.0 4.1 5.4 7.0 8.5 9.3 9.3 9.4 9.3 8.5 6.9 5.2 3.8 2.8 2.0 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.5

0.7 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.7 3.7 5.1 6.8 8.6 9.7 10.0 10.2 10.3 10.2 9.2 7.7 6.3 5.2 4.4 3.9 3.6 3.4 3.4 3.6 4.2 5.1 6.4 8.0 9.3 9.7 9.5 9.5 9.4 8.5 6.9 5.2 4.0 3.2 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.8 3.4 4.4 5.7 7.4 8.8 9.4 9.4 9.5 9.3 8.6 7.1 5.5 4.1 3.2 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.6 3.1 4.1 5.4 7.0 8.6 9.3 9.5 9.5 9.4 9.1 7.6 5.9 4.4 3.3 2.6 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.7 2.0 2.5 3.2 4.3 5.8 7.6 9.1 9.6 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.1 7.7 6.3 5.3 4.8 4.9 5.4 6.5 7.9 9.1 9.6 9.5 9.5 9.4 8.6 7.0 5.3 4.0 2.9 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.4 1.8 2.3 3.0 4.2 5.6 7.3 8.9 9.4 9.7 9.7 9.5 8.9 7.3 5.6 4.0 2.9 2.0 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.4

0.8 1.0 1.4 1.9 2.6 3.5 4.7 6.3 8.0 9.2 9.7 9.6 9.9 9.5 8.3 6.8 5.5 4.5 3.7 3.3 3.0 2.9 3.0 3.4 4.0 5.1 6.6 8.2 9.4 9.7 10.1 9.8 9.5 8.7 7.1 5.4 4.1 3.1 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.7 3.4 4.4 5.8 7.5 8.8 9.3 9.8 9.8 9.3 8.7 7.2 5.5 4.1 3.1 2.4 2.1 2.1 2.4 2.9 3.9 5.2 6.8 8.4 9.2 9.7 9.9 9.4 8.9 7.5 5.8 4.2 3.1 2.3 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.3 3.0 4.1 5.6 7.3 8.8 9.4 10.0 9.9 9.5 8.9 7.5 6.0 5.0 4.5 4.6 5.2 6.4 7.9 9.1 9.5 9.9 9.8 9.2 8.5 6.9 5.3 3.8 2.8 2.0 1.5 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.5 2.0 2.7 3.9 5.4 7.1 8.7 9.3 9.8 9.9 9.3 8.6 7.1 5.4 3.9 2.7 1.9 1.3 0.9 0.6 0.4

0.8 1.1 1.4 1.9 2.5 3.2 4.3 5.5 6.8 7.9 8.5 8.3 8.5 8.0 6.9 5.7 4.7 3.8 3.2 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.8 4.9 6.3 8.0 9.4 9.8 10.1 10.0 9.5 8.7 7.0 5.3 4.0 3.2 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.4 4.3 5.8 7.5 9.0 9.5 9.8 9.7 9.3 8.7 7.1 5.4 4.1 3.1 2.5 2.2 2.2 2.4 3.0 4.0 5.4 7.1 8.7 9.3 9.6 9.6 9.4 8.9 7.6 5.9 4.4 3.3 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.3 3.1 4.3 5.9 7.5 9.0 9.4 9.7 9.8 9.6 9.1 7.7 6.4 5.3 4.8 4.8 5.4 6.4 7.9 9.2 9.6 9.8 9.8 9.4 8.7 7.0 5.3 3.9 2.8 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.1 2.9 4.0 5.5 7.2 8.7 9.4 9.5 9.6 9.4 8.7 7.3 5.5 4.0 2.9 2.0 1.4 1.0 0.6 0.4

0.9 1.1 1.5 1.8 2.3 2.9 3.7 4.6 5.5 6.3 6.7 6.5 6.8 6.3 5.5 4.7 3.9 3.3 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.8 4.9 6.3 7.9 9.3 9.7 9.7 9.8 9.6 8.7 7.1 5.5 4.2 3.4 2.8 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.5 4.4 5.7 7.3 8.9 9.4 9.4 9.3 9.3 8.6 7.0 5.4 4.0 3.1 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.5 3.0 3.8 5.1 6.6 8.2 9.1 9.3 9.1 9.2 8.6 7.2 5.5 4.2 3.1 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.3 3.0 4.0 5.4 7.1 8.6 9.2 9.2 9.5 9.4 8.7 7.3 6.0 5.1 4.6 4.7 5.3 6.3 7.7 9.0 9.4 9.4 9.3 9.2 8.3 6.7 5.1 3.8 2.7 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.6 2.0 2.7 3.7 5.0 6.6 8.1 9.0 9.1 9.0 9.0 8.2 6.7 5.1 3.7 2.7 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.4

1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.2 3.9 4.4 4.9 5.2 4.9 5.1 4.8 4.3 3.7 3.2 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.8 3.5 4.4 5.6 7.1 8.5 9.2 9.1 9.3 9.0 8.0 6.5 5.1 4.0 3.3 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.9 3.4 4.1 5.2 6.6 7.9 8.7 8.7 8.7 8.6 7.6 6.2 4.8 3.7 2.9 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.8 3.5 4.5 5.7 7.1 8.1 8.4 8.2 8.3 7.5 6.2 4.9 3.7 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.7 2.1 2.8 3.6 4.8 6.2 7.5 8.4 8.4 8.7 8.4 7.6 6.5 5.4 4.7 4.3 4.3 4.8 5.7 6.8 8.0 8.6 8.6 8.5 8.3 7.3 5.9 4.6 3.4 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.5 3.3 4.4 5.6 6.8 7.7 8.0 7.8 7.7 6.9 5.7 4.4 3.3 2.4 1.8 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.4

1.0 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.8 3.3 3.6 3.8 4.0 3.7 3.8 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.6 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.1 3.9 4.9 6.0 7.0 7.7 7.7 8.0 7.6 6.9 5.8 4.8 3.8 3.3 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.9 3.2 3.7 4.6 5.5 6.5 7.1 7.2 7.2 6.9 6.2 5.2 4.2 3.3 2.7 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.5 3.1 3.9 4.8 5.7 6.4 6.7 6.5 6.6 5.9 5.1 4.1 3.2 2.5 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.5 3.1 4.1 5.1 6.0 6.7 6.7 7.0 6.7 6.2 5.4 4.7 4.2 3.9 3.9 4.3 4.9 5.7 6.5 7.0 7.0 6.9 6.7 5.9 4.9 3.9 3.0 2.3 1.8 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.2 2.9 3.6 4.5 5.3 6.0 6.2 6.0 6.0 5.4 4.6 3.7 2.9 2.2 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.4

1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.3 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.1 3.2 2.9 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.3 4.1 4.9 5.6 6.2 6.1 6.5 6.2 5.7 5.1 4.4 3.6 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.8 2.8 3.0 3.4 4.0 4.6 5.1 5.5 5.7 5.8 5.6 4.9 4.3 3.5 2.9 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.3 2.6 3.2 3.8 4.3 4.8 5.0 4.9 4.9 4.5 3.9 3.4 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.7 3.3 4.1 4.6 5.2 5.4 5.5 5.4 4.9 4.4 3.9 3.6 3.4 3.5 3.7 4.1 4.5 5.0 5.4 5.4 5.4 5.1 4.6 4.1 3.3 2.6 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.4 3.0 3.6 4.1 4.5 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.2 3.6 2.9 2.4 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4

1.3 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.3 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.8 3.4 3.9 4.4 4.8 4.8 5.2 5.1 4.8 4.6 4.2 3.6 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.2 3.5 3.6 3.5 3.6 3.3 3.1 3.0 3.3 3.5 3.7 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.4

1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.8 2.7 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.1 3.5 3.8 3.9 4.2 4.4 4.4 4.4 4.1 3.8 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4

1.4 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.2 3.6 3.4 3.1 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.8 3.2 3.4 3.8 4.1 4.3 4.5 4.4 4.2 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3

1.5 2.0 2.6 3.1 3.7 4.1 3.9 4.3 4.1 3.6 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.1 2.8 3.6 4.1 4.6 5.0 5.0 4.8 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3

1.7 2.2 2.9 3.7 4.4 4.8 4.6 4.9 4.7 4.1 3.4 2.7 2.1 1.6 3.6 4.2 4.9 5.4 5.6 5.3 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3

1.8 2.3 3.2 4.0 4.8 5.0 4.9 5.1 5.0 4.5 3.6 2.8 2.2 1.7 3.6 4.3 5.1 5.5 5.6 5.4 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2

1.8 2.4 3.3 4.2 4.8 5.1 5.2 5.2 5.0 4.6 3.8 3.0 2.3 1.7 3.5 4.4 5.1 5.4 5.6 5.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2

1.8 2.4 3.2 4.1 4.8 5.0 5.2 5.2 5.0 4.6 3.8 3.0 2.4 1.7 3.5 4.4 5.0 5.4 5.5 5.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

1.7 2.3 3.1 4.0 4.7 5.0 4.9 5.1 5.0 4.6 3.8 3.0 2.4 1.9 3.5 4.2 4.9 5.3 5.2 5.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.6 2.1 2.8 3.5 4.2 4.7 4.5 4.8 4.7 4.3 3.6 3.0 2.5 2.0 3.4 3.9 4.4 4.8 4.9 4.7 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.4 1.8 2.4 2.9 3.5 3.9 3.7 4.1 4.0 3.8 3.4 3.0 2.7 2.5 1.8 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.9 3.2 3.5 3.8 4.1 4.1 3.9 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.2 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.1 2.9 3.4 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.3 3.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.3 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.2 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 1.8 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.2 3.6 3.9 4.1 4.1 4.0 3.8 3.4 2.9 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.4 2.7 3.2 3.6 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.8 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.3 3.9 4.5 4.8 4.8 4.7 4.5 4.0 3.4 2.8 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.8 3.4 4.0 4.4 4.6 4.6 4.5 4.1 3.6 3.0 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.5 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.7 2.1 2.7 3.4 4.2 4.8 5.0 5.1 5.0 4.9 4.5 3.7 3.0 2.5 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.2 3.9 4.6 4.9 5.0 5.0 5.0 4.5 3.8 3.0 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.5 1.9 2.5 3.3 4.1 4.7 5.0 5.2 5.1 5.0 4.6 3.8 3.1 2.5 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.3 4.1 4.8 5.0 5.1 5.1 5.0 4.7 3.9 3.0 2.3 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.7 2.3 3.1 4.0 4.6 4.9 5.1 5.0 4.7 4.2 3.5 2.8 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.4 3.0 3.8 4.5 4.8 5.1 5.0 4.7 4.4 3.6 2.7 2.0 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.7 2.3 3.1 3.9 4.6 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.5 3.7 3.0 2.6 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.3 4.1 4.7 4.9 5.0 5.0 4.9 4.5 3.7 2.9 2.1 1.6 1.2 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.7 3.5 4.2 4.5 4.6 4.6 4.5 4.0 3.4 2.8 2.4 2.2 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.7 4.4 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.6 4.2 3.4 2.6 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 1.0 1.3 1.8 2.3 2.9 3.4 3.8 3.9 3.9 3.7 3.4 2.9 2.5 2.2 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.7 3.2 3.7 4.0 4.2 4.1 3.9 3.5 2.9 2.2 1.7 1.3 0.9 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.3 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0



Page 2 of 2

Date:11/6/2023

LL-17580-R-1 (EXT).AGI

Layout designs are based on information provided by the client and are only to be used as USLED recommendations for luminaire placement.  Determination of luminaire application within existing or new field conditions is the
responsibility of the engineer and/or architect.
The illumination level calculations within this layout are of those luminaires that have been laboratory tested under controlled conditions in accordance with Illuminating Engineering Society standard practices.  Performance of
any USLED luminaire may vary based on any varying field conditions.  Unless otherwise noted, calculations do not include landscaping, buildings, curbs, or any other architectural elements which may alter the results.

Prepared For:

Completed By:

Project Name:

Lapp

National LED

DPM Ypsilanti

Luminaire Schedule
Symbol Qty

Calculation Summary @ GRADE - Calculation Points = 10'x10'
Label Units Avg MaxLabel Arrangement LLF Lum. Watts Total Watts Lum. Lumens MH Min Avg/Min Max/Min
ground_Planar Fc 2.4919 QDXLE2-240-50-UNVL-x-5-x-x (x4) 4 @ 90 DEGREES 0.963 247.6 11.1 0.0 N.A. N.A.18817.6 34768 38'

8 QDXLE2-240-50-UNVL-x-5-x-x (B2B) BACK-BACK 0.963 247.6 3961.6 34768 38'



  

 
 

 
 

LH2 Architecture, LLC 
5909 West Loop South, Suite 230 

Bellaire, TX  77401 
P: 713-664-2938 F: 713-255-3156 

 

November 17, 2023 
 
Jason Iacoangeli AICP 
Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
RE:  DealPoint Merrill Self Storage 
 2515 Ellsworth Road 
 Ypsilanti Township, MI 
 
Dear Jason, 
In reference to the Director’s Report dated 10-27-2023, we offer the following responses. 
 
Screening and Landscaping:  

1. Dumpster Enclosures: Dumpster locations are indicated on the site plan AS1.01 and AS1.02. 
Enclosures meeting the requirements of the ordinance will be provided as part of Phase 1, re: 
A3.01. 

 
2. Rooftop equipment screening will be provided as part of Phase 1. Refer to AS1.02. 

 

3. Landscaping is provided, re: AS1.02 and EX-1 Landscape Plan. 
 
Lighting:  

1. A photometric is provided confirming adequate lighting in the parking lot. As part of Phase 1, an 
additional light pole will be added in the rear of the proposed storage re: AS1.02. Additionally, all 
existing wall packs will be replaced with new LED fixtures. 

 
Façade Improvements: 

1. Refer to elevations sheet A2.01for proposed improvements to be provided as part of Phase 1. 
The storefront for the proposed new retail will be provided as part of Phase 2, once a tenant is 
identified. 

 
Work to be included as part of Phase 1 is listed on sheet AS1.02. Additionally, existing utilities are 
provided on the attached updated ALTA survey.  
 
Should any additional information be required, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
LH2 ARCHITECTURE, LLC 

 
Lettie H. Harrell AIA, NCARB, LEED AP 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Staff Report  
Visible Learning Center 

1189 E. Michigan Ave, Ypsilanti MI  
Site Plan  

 
December 12, 2023 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applicant: Visible Learning Center  
 
Project Name: Visible Learning Center Driveway  
 
Plan Date: 11-08-2023 
 
Location: 1189 E. Michigan Ave, Ypsilanti MI, 48198 Parcel ID# K-11-10-106-018 
 
Zoning: RC - Regional Corridor – Site Type B 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Review 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Case Location and Summary 
The Office of Community Standards is in receipt of a Preliminary Site Plan Application 
from Visible Learning Center requesting preliminary site plan approval to improve the 
existing parking area and provide direct access to Michigan Ave via new driveway 
entrance and paved parking area. Currently, The Visible Learning Center shares a 
driveway with 1159 E. Michigan Avenue which is located the West of the property. This 
arrangement has the potential to cause traffic conflicts and confusion with patrons.  
 
Cross References  

• Article 5, Form Based Districts  
• Article 9, Site Plan Review  
• Article 12, Access, Parking, Loading 
• Article 13, Site Design Standards 

 
Subject Site Use, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti 2040 Master Plan designates this site for Mixed-Uses. 
The intent is to preserve and strengthen the neighborhoods through investment, 
rehabilitation, and infill. The site is currently zoned RC, Regional Corridor which follows 
the Master Plan designation.  
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Aerial Photograph – 2020  
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Size of Subject Site: 
2.28 acres 
 
Current Use of Subject Site: 
Daycare Center 
 
Current Zoning: 
RC – Regional Corridor – Site Type B Designation  
 
Proposed use of Subject Property: 
Redoing parking lot and adding a driveway connection off Michigan Avenue 
 
Adjacent Uses, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan 
 

Direction 
 

Use Zoning Master Plan 

North Residential RC – Regional 
Corridor 

Regional Corridor 

South Vacant RC – Regional 
Corridor 

Regional Corridor 

East Residential/Commercial RC – Regional 
Corridor 

Regional Corridor 

West Residential/Commercial RC – Regional 
Corridor 

Regional Corridor 

 
Natural Features 
 
Topography: The subject parcel is relatively flat.  
 
Woodlands: There are matured woodland trees on the property where the driveway is to 
be located.  
 
Wetlands: There are no wetlands on the subject property. According to FEMA MAP 
26161C0430E, Dated April 3, 2012, the site is in an area of minimal flood hazard.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Analysis 
 
Parking and Loading:  
 
Sec 1205. – Parking Requirements requires the following:  
 
 Required Provided 
Childcare Center +/- 15 21    
Loading  1 Per Building 1 
Bike Parking 1 1 

 
Items to be addressed: None to be addressed. The applicant proposes adequate 
parking accommodation.  
 
Parking Lot Patching / Asphalt Replacement:  
 
Sec 903.3 – Completion of site design in accordance with approved final site plan:  
 
It shall be the responsibility of the owner of a property for which final site plan approval 
has been granted to maintain the property in accordance with the approved site design 
on a continuing basis until the property is razed, or until new zoning regulations supersede 
the regulations upon which site approval was based, or until a new site design approval 
is sought. Such maintenance shall include all building and site elements depicted on the 
site plan including parking configuration, lighting, and landscaping. Any property owner 
who fails to maintain a site as approved shall be deemed in violation of the applicable use 
provisions of this Section and shall be subject to penalties.   
 
Items to be addressed: None to be addressed. The property owner shall be responsible 
for maintaining the driveway and parking lot on a continuing basis.                                
 
Sidewalk 
Sec 1206. – Bicycle and Pedestrian Accommodations 
 
Development plans shall include site amenities that enhance safety and convenience and 
promote walking or bicycling as an alternative means of transportation. All sites with 
parking of ten (10) spaces or greater shall provide a bike rack for at least two (2) bicycles 
within fifty (50) feet of the building entrance.  
 
Concrete paved safety paths for bicycles and pedestrians not less than eight (8) feet wide 
shall be provided on both sides of all major thoroughfares defined in Section 24, 
Definitions.  
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Items to be addressed: None to be addressed. The applicant has included bicycle and 
pedestrian accommodation in the form of a bike hoop, and a 5’ wide sidewalk connection 
from E. Michigan Avenue to the daycare facility, and an 8’ wide sidewalk along E. 
Michigan Avenue.  
 
Landscaping:  
Sec 1301. – Landscaping Requirements  
 
Upon thorough review of the site plan landscape requirements, we have determined the 
landscape plan provided meets the general intent and minimum requirements of the 
zoning ordinance. 
 
The applicant is removing 10 regulated trees. Tree replacement at 100 percent of trees 
is required. The applicant is adding 8 additional trees along with the required 10. As well 
as 35 new shrubs around the north and south property lines along Cross Street and 
Michigan Avenue.  
 
Items to be addressed: None to be addressed.  
 
Trash Receptacles: 
Sec 1302. – Trash and Recycling Receptacles 
 
The site plan gives location and plans for dumpster enclosure that meets the 
requirements per section 1302 of the zoning ordinance.  
 
Items to be addressed: None to be addressed.  
 
Exterior Lighting:  
Sec 1303 – Exterior Lighting 
 
The plans show existing light poles, and there are plans given that shows updated lighting 
that will be put on the existing poles.  
 
Items to be addressed: There are two existing light poles in the grass field on the 
northern side of the property adjacent to Cross Street. These poles are non-operational 
and serve no purpose to the functioning of the site. These light poles must be removed.  
 
Summary:  
The Township Planning Department strongly encourages this development as it will 
increase pedestrian safety and decrease traffic conflicts in the area. 

 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Suggested Motions:  
 
The following suggested motions and conditions are provided to assist the Planning 
Commission in making the most appropriate motion for this application.  The Commission 
may utilize, add, or reject any conditions suggested herein, as they deem appropriate. 
 
Motion to table:  
 
“I move to table the request for Preliminary Site Plan of The Visible Learning Center to 
permit the construction of a new driveway entrance off East Michigan Avenue and 
associated parking lot improvements for a 2.28-acre site zoned RC – Regional Corridor 
with a Site Type B Designation, located at 1189 E. Michigan Avenue, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, 
Parcel, K-11-10-106-018 to consider comments presented by the Planning Commission 
during the discussion of the project.”  
 
Motion to approve.  
 
“I move to approve the Preliminary Site Plan of The Visible Learning Center to permit 
the construction of a new driveway entrance off East Michigan Avenue and associated 
parking lot improvements for a 2.28-acre site zoned RC – Regional Corridor with a Site 
Type B Designation, located at 1189 E. Michigan Avenue, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel, K-
11-10-106-018, with the following conditions:  
 

1. The applicant shall address all outstanding comments from reviewing agencies 
prior to Final Site Plan approval.  

2. The applicant shall obtain all applicable internal and outside agency permits prior 
to construction.  

3. The applicant shall remove the inoperable light poles in the grass field on the 
northern side of the property adjacent to Cross Street.  

4. The applicant shall provide the Planning Department with fence plans that meet 
the Township Zoning Ordinance requirements for the existing entrance closure.  

5. Any other conditions based upon Planning Commission Discussion. 
 
Motion to deny:  
 
“I move to deny the Preliminary Site Plan of The Visible Learning Center to permit the 
construction of a new driveway entrance off East Michigan Avenue and associated 
parking lot improvements for a 2.28-acre site zoned RC – Regional Corridor with a Site 
Type B Designation, located at 1189 E. Michigan Avenue, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel, K-
11-10-106-018, for the following reasons: 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Fletcher Reyher, Planning & Development Coordinator  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Planning Department  
 



Project Name:

Location: 

Date:

Planning Director’s Report

Full Preliminary Site Plan Review # Rezoning
Sketch Preliminary Site Plan Review # Tentative Preliminary Plat
Administrative Preliminary Site Plan Review # Final Preliminary Plat
Detailed Engineering/Final Site Plan Review # Final Plat Process
Special Use Permit Planned Development Stage I
Public Hearing Planned Development Stage II

Contact / Reviewer
Consultants, Departments,

& Agencies
Approved

Approved 
with 

Conditions
Denied N/A

See email/letter
attached or comments 

below
Jason Iacoangeli,
Planning Director

Township Planning 
Department

Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates

Planning Consultant

OHM / Stantec Engineering Consultant

,
Fire Marshal

Township Fire
Department

Dave Bellers, 
Building Official

Township Building 
Department

Brian McCleery, 
Deputy Assessor

Township Assessing 
Department

Scott Westover, 
Engineering Manager

Ypsilanti Community 
Utilities Authority

Gary Streight, Project 
Manager

Washtenaw County Road 
Commission 

Theresa Marsik,
Stormwater Engineer

Washtenaw County Water 
Resources Commission

James Drury, Permit 
Agent

Michigan Department of 
Transportation

Planning Director’s Recommended Action: 



Township Supervisor
Brenda L. Stumbo
Township Clerk
Heather Jarrell Roe
Township Treasurer
Stan Eldridge

Trustees
John Newman II
Gloria Peterson

Debbie Swanson
Ryan Hunter

Staff Report 
Visible Learning Center

1189 E. Michigan Ave, Ypsilanti MI
Site Plan 

November 17, 2023
______________________________________________________________________

Applicant: Visible Learning Center 

Project Name: Visible Learning Center Driveway 

Plan Date: 11-08-2023

Location: 1189 E. Michigan Ave, Ypsilanti MI, 48198 Parcel ID# K-11-10-106-018

Zoning: RC - Regional Corridor – Site Type B

Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Review
_______________________________________________________________________

Case Location and Summary
The Office of Community Standards is in receipt of an Administrative Site Plan Application 
from Visible Learning Center requesting administrative site plan approval to improve 
existing parking and provide direct access to Michigan Ave via new driveway entrance 
and paved parking area. Currently, The Visible Learning Center shares a driveway with 
1159 E. Michigan Avenue which is located the West of the property. This arrangement 
has the potential to cause traffic conflicts and confusion with patrons. 

Cross References 
Article 5, Form Based Districts
Article 9, Site Plan Review 
Article 12, Access, Parking, Loading
Article 13, Site Design Standards

Subject Site Use, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti 2040 Master Plan designates this site for Mixed-Uses. 
The intent is to preserve and strengthen the neighborhoods through investment, 
rehabilitation, and infill. The site is currently zoned RC, Regional Corridor which follows 
the Master Plan designation. 



Township Supervisor
Brenda L. Stumbo
Township Clerk
Heather Jarrell Roe
Township Treasurer
Stan Eldridge

Trustees
John Newman II
Gloria Peterson

Debbie Swanson
Ryan Hunter

Aerial Photograph – 2020 



Township Supervisor
Brenda L. Stumbo
Township Clerk
Heather Jarrell Roe
Township Treasurer
Stan Eldridge

Trustees
John Newman II
Gloria Peterson

Debbie Swanson
Ryan Hunter

Size of Subject Site:
2.28 acres

Current Use of Subject Site:
Daycare Center

Current Zoning:
RC – Regional Corridor – Site Type B Designation 

Proposed use of Subject Property:
Redoing parking lot and adding a driveway connection off Michigan Ave

Adjacent Uses, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan

Direction Use Zoning Master Plan

North Residential RC – Regional 
Corridor

Regional Corridor

South Vacant RC – Regional 
Corridor

Regional Corridor

East Residential/Commercial RC – Regional 
Corridor

Regional Corridor

West Residential/Commercial RC – Regional 
Corridor

Regional Corridor

Natural Features

Topography: The subject parcel is relatively flat. 

Woodlands: There are matured woodland trees on the property where the driveway is to 
be located. 

Wetlands: There are no wetlands on the subject property. According to FEMA MAP 
26161C0430E, Dated April 3, 2012, the site is in an area of minimal flood hazard. 



Township Supervisor
Brenda L. Stumbo
Township Clerk
Heather Jarrell Roe
Township Treasurer
Stan Eldridge

Trustees
John Newman II
Gloria Peterson

Debbie Swanson
Ryan Hunter

Analysis

Parking and Loading: 

Sec 1205. – Parking Requirements requires the following: 

Required Provided
Childcare Center +/- 15 21
Loading 1 Per Building 1
Bike Parking 1 1

Items to be addressed: None to be addressed. The applicant proposes adequate 
parking accommodation. 

Parking Lot Patching / Asphalt Replacement: 

Sec 903.3 – Completion of site design in accordance with approved final site plan: 

It shall be the responsibility of the owner of a property for which final site plan approval 
has been granted to maintain the property in accordance with the approved site design 
on a continuing basis until the property is razed, or until new zoning regulations supersede 
the regulations upon which site approval was based, or until a new site design approval 
is sought. Such maintenance shall include all building and site elements depicted on the 
site plan including parking configuration, lighting, and landscaping. Any property owner 
who fails to maintain a site as approved shall be deemed in violation of the applicable use 
provisions of this Section and shall be subject to penalties.  

Items to be addressed: None to be addressed. The property owner shall be responsible 
for maintaining the driveway and parking lot on a continuing basis.                               

Sidewalk
Sec 1206. – Bicycle and Pedestrian Accommodations

Development plans shall include site amenities that enhance safety and convenience and 
promote walking or bicycling as an alternative means of transportation. All sites with 
parking of ten (10) spaces or greater shall provide a bike rack for at least two (2) bicycles 
within fifty (50) feet of the building entrance. 

Concrete paved safety paths for bicycles and pedestrians not less than eight (8) feet wide 
shall be provided on both sides of all major thoroughfares defined in Section 24, 
Definitions. 



Township Supervisor
Brenda L. Stumbo
Township Clerk
Heather Jarrell Roe
Township Treasurer
Stan Eldridge

Trustees
John Newman II
Gloria Peterson

Debbie Swanson
Ryan Hunter

Items to be addressed: None to be addressed. The applicant has included bicycle and 
pedestrian accommodation in the form of a bike hoop, and a 5’ wide sidewalk connection 
from E. Michigan Avenue to the daycare facility, and an 8’ wide sidewalk along E. 
Michigan Avenue. 

Landscaping: 
Sec 1301. – Landscaping Requirements 

Upon thorough review of the site plan landscape requirements, we have determined the 
landscape plan provided meets the general intent and minimum requirements of the 
zoning ordinance.

The applicant is removing 10 regulated trees. Tree replacement at 100 percent of trees 
is required. The applicant is adding 8 additional trees along with the required 10. As well 
as 35 new shrubs around the north and south property lines along Cross Street and 
Michigan Avenue. 

Items to be addressed: None to be addressed. 

Trash Receptacles:
Sec 1302. – Trash and Recycling Receptacles

The site plan gives location and plans for dumpster enclosure that meets the 
requirements per section 1302 of the zoning ordinance. 

Items to be addressed: None to be addressed. 

Exterior Lighting: 
Sec 1303 – Exterior Lighting

The plans show existing light poles, and there are plans given that shows updated lighting 
that will be put on the existing poles. 

Items to be addressed: There are two existing light poles in the grass field on the 
northern side of the property adjacent to Cross Street. These poles are non-operational 
and serve no purpose to the functioning of the site. These light poles must be removed. 

Summary: 
The Township Planning Department strongly encourages this development as it will 
increase pedestrian safety and decrease traffic conflicts in the area.



Township Supervisor
Brenda L. Stumbo
Township Clerk
Heather Jarrell Roe
Township Treasurer
Stan Eldridge

Trustees
John Newman II
Gloria Peterson

Debbie Swanson
Ryan Hunter

Recommendations:
1. The applicant shall submit to the Planning Department fence plans for the closure 

of the shared driveway at the time of Final Site Plan Review. The fence plans must 
comply with the Township Zoning Ordinance. 

2. The applicant shall remove the two existing light poles located in the grass field 
North of the building, adjacent to Cross Street. These light poles serve no purpose 
and must be removed as they do not contribute to the functioning of the site. 

3. The Planning Department asks that the applicant consider installing a sidewalk 
connection from the proposed site to Cross Street. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Fletcher Reyher, Planning & Development Coordinator 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Planning Department 









CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT
BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION
222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198

November 17, 2023

Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

RE: Preliminary (non-residential) Site Plan Review #2

Project Name:  K-11-10-106-018 Visible Learning Center
Project Location:  1189 E. Michigan Ave. Ypsilanti, MI 48198
Plan revision Date:  11/8/2023
Job #: 32983
Applicable Codes: IFC 2018
Engineer: Washtenaw Engineering
Engineer Address: 3526 W. Liberty rd. suite 400 Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Status of Review

Status of review: Approved as Submitted

All pages were reviewed.

Site Coverage - Access

Comments: Complies with IFC 2018

.

Sincerely,

  Steve Wallgren, Fire Marshal
  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department
  CFPS, CFI I





EVAN N. PRATT, P.E. Harry Sheehan
               Chief Deputy Water Resources Commissioner   
 Water Resources Commissioner  

705 N Zeeb Road Scott Miller P.E.
 Ann Arbor, MI 48103  Deputy Water Resources Commissioner
 734-222-6860 
  Theo Eggermont 
 Drains@washtenaw.org  Public Works Director 

Washtenaw.org/Drains 

 
December 4, 2023 

 
 
Mr. Joseph Maynard, P.E. 
Washtenaw Engineering 
P.O. Box 1128 
3526 West Liberty Road, Suite 400 
Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106 

RE: Visible Learning Center 
Ypsilanti Township, Michigan 
WCWRC Project No. 9940 

 
Dear Mr. Maynard: 
 
This office has reviewed the site plans for the above-referenced project to be located 
in Ypsilanti Township.  These plans have a job number of 32983, a date of November 
8, 2023, and were received on November 14, 2023.  As a result of our review, we 
would like to offer the following comments: 
 
1. The design plans are technically correct and do not require revisions at this time. 

An approval letter will be issued upon payment of the attached invoice. 

2. Please submit the drain use permit application, affidavit of pollution prevention, 
and required permit fees at your convenience. If revisions are made to the plans 
based on comments from other agencies, provide the latest plans with the permit 
application. 

3. Please see the attached invoice for the current fees and remit these fees upon 
receipt. As requested, the invoice is being submitted directly to Visible Learning 
Center. 

 
If you have any questions, please contact our office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Theresa M. Marsik, P.E. 
Stormwater Engineer 
(permit\Visible Learning Center rev2) 

 
cc: Kamal Dari, Visible Learning Center 

Jason Iacoangeli, Ypsilanti Township Planning Director 
Belinda Kingsley, Ypsilanti Township Planning & Zoning Coordinator 
Fletcher Reyher, Ypsilanti Township Planning & Development Coordinator 
Doug Winters, McLain and Winters 
Matt Parks, P.E., Ypsilanti Township Engineer (OHM) 
Stacie Monte, Ypsilanti Township Engineer (OHM)  





















visibile learning center

FOR:

A PART OF THE ne corner OF

1189 e. michigan ave
YPSILANTI, MI  48197
PH:  (734) 480-2414

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN
SECTION 10, T3S, R7E, YPSILANTI township, 

1189 e. michigan ave.

PRELIMINARY site plan
for

visible learning center

DESCRIPTION

Commencing at the Northeast corner of Section 10, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township,
Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence N90°00'00”W 1286.26 feet along the North line of
said Section and the centerline of Cross Street; thence S00°11'55”W 33.29 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continuing S00°11'55”W 149.92 feet (recorded as 150.00
feet); thence N89°59'43”E 167.05 feet; thence S01°17'57”W 184.49 feet; thence
S73°20'39”W 178.90 feet (recorded as 179.00 feet); thence S01°19'15”E 199.91 feet;
thence S73°20'06”W 99.98 feet along the Northerly line of Michigan Avenue; thence
N01°19'15”W 299.87 feet (recorded as 300.00 feet); thence N16°16'47”W 57.22 feet;
thence N00°55'54”W 259.47 feet (recorded as 259.45 feet); thence N89°59'43”E 119.03
(recorded as 118.48 feet) along the South line of Cross Street to the Point of Beginning.
Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 10, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township,
Washtenaw County, Michigan and a part of Lot 7 of Supervisors Plat No. 5, as recorded
in Liber 9 of Plats, Page 27 Washtenaw County records, and containing 2.28 acres of
land, more or less. Being subject to any easements and restrictions of record, if any.

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-c
ov

er
.d

w
g,

 1
1/

10
/2

02
3 

8:
40

:1
2 

A
M

, 1
:1



2

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

DESCRIPTION
Commencing at the Northeast corner of Section 10, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan;
thence N90°00'00”W 1286.26 feet along the North line of said Section and the centerline of Cross Street; thence
S00°11'55”W 33.29 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continuing S00°11'55”W 149.92 feet (recorded as
150.00 feet); thence N89°59'43”E 167.05 feet; thence S01°17'57”W 184.49 feet; thence S73°20'39”W 178.90 feet
(recorded as 179.00 feet); thence S01°19'15”E 199.91 feet; thence S73°20'06”W 99.98 feet along the Northerly line of
Michigan Avenue; thence N01°19'15”W 299.87 feet (recorded as 300.00 feet); thence N16°16'47”W 57.22 feet; thence
N00°55'54”W 259.47 feet (recorded as 259.45 feet); thence N89°59'43”E 119.03 (recorded as 118.48 feet) along the
South line of Cross Street to the Point of Beginning.  Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 10, T3S, R7E,
Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan and a part of Lot 7 of Supervisors Plat No. 5, as recorded in Liber 9
of Plats, Page 27 Washtenaw County records, and containing 2.28 acres of land, more or less. Being subject to any
easements and restrictions of record, if any.

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY
Bearings shown on this survey were determined in the following manner:  Bearings have been rotated to match the
recorded bearing of Supervisors Plat No. 5, as recorded in Liber 9 of Plats, Page 27 Washtenaw County records.

I hereby certify that I have surveyed and mapped the land above platted and/or described on March 3, 2023 and that
the ratio of closure on the unadjusted field observations of such survey was 1/10,000, and that all of the requirements
of P.A. 132, 1970 (as amended by P.A. 280, 1972 and P.A. 24, 1988) have been complied with.

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-to
po

.d
w

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

40
:1

7 
A

M
, 1

:1



3

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-n
at

 fe
at

.d
w

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

40
:2

3 
A

M
, 1

:1



4

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-r
em

.d
w

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

40
:2

7 
A

M
, 1

:1



5

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-s
ite

.d
w

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

40
:2

8 
A

M
, 1

:1



6

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-a
cc

es
s.

dw
g,

 1
1/

10
/2

02
3 

8:
40

:3
3 

A
M

, 1
:1



7

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

ECONOMY MIX (Seed Mix for all restored areas of new pavement)
40% CR. RED FESCUE
30% ANNUAL RYE
20% PER. RYEGRASS
10% KY. BLUEGRASS

Seed Rate: 4#/1000 sf
12-12-12 fertilize @ 10#/1000sf
80# Wheat/Straw Mulch crimped into grade

Supplier: Rhino seed & landscape supply,
850 N. Old Highway 23,
Brighton, MI.+1 800 482 3130

 
 

 
 

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-la
nd

.d
w

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

40
:4

0 
A

M
, 1

:1



8

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-g
rd

.d
w

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

40
:4

9 
A

M
, 1

:1



9

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-s
w

m
.d

w
g,

 1
1/

10
/2

02
3 

8:
41

:0
1 

A
M

, 1
:1



P1

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-p
ho

to
 p

la
n.

dw
g,

 1
1/

10
/2

02
3 

8:
41

:0
6 

A
M

, 1
:1



P2

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-p
ho

to
 d

et
.d

w
g,

 1
1/

10
/2

02
3 

8:
41

:0
9 

A
M

, 1
:1



M1

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

·

·
·

·

·
·
·

·

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-m
do

t.d
w

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

41
:1

6 
A

M
, 1

:1



M2

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
Tã

  2
02

3 
W

A
S

H
TE

N
A

W
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
C

.
N

O
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

P
R

IO
R

 W
R

IT
TE

N
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

S
H

TE
N

A
W

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

C
.

VI
SI

B
LE

 L
EA

R
N

IN
G

C
EN

TE
R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-m
do

t-t
ra

ffi
c.

dw
g,

 1
1/

10
/2

02
3 

8:
41

:2
2 

A
M

, 1
:1



13

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-y
ps

i-s
es

c.
dw

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

41
:2

6 
A

M
, 1

:1



14

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-y
ps

i-s
tm

1.
dw

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

41
:2

9 
A

M
, 1

:1



15

H
:\l

dd
3\

en
g\

32
98

3\
dw

g\
98

3-
sp

-y
ps

i-s
tm

2.
dw

g,
 1

1/
10

/2
02

3 
8:

41
:3

3 
A

M
, 1

:1



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Ypsilanti Township Planning Commission 
2024 Schedule of Meetings 

 
The Planning Commission holds regular meetings on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of each month.  
 
Special Meetings may be held at the request of the applicant. If a special meeting is called the applicant is 
required to pay a fee of $1,100. 
 
Work Session: 6:00pm (time subject to change due to length of agenda) 
Meeting: 6:30pm 
 
All meetings are held at the Tilden R. Stumbo Civic Center Building, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, 
Michigan 48197. 
  

Tuesday, January 9, 2024 
Tuesday, January 23, 2024 

 
Tuesday, February 13, 2024 
Tuesday, February 27, 2024 

 
Tuesday, March 12, 2024 
Tuesday, March 26, 2024 

 
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024 

 
Tuesday, May 14, 2024 
Tuesday, May 28, 2024 

 
Tuesday, June 11, 2024 
Tuesday, June 25, 2024 

 
Tuesday, July 9, 2024 
Tuesday, July 23, 2024 

 
Tuesday, August 13, 2024 
Tuesday, August 27, 2024 

 
Tuesday, September 10, 2024 
Tuesday, September 24, 2024 

 
Tuesday, October 8, 2024 

Tuesday, October 22, 2024 
 

Tuesday, November 12, 2024 
Tuesday, November 26, 2024 

 
Tuesday, December 10, 2024 

No meeting Tuesday, December 24, 2024 
 
 




	DPM Ypsilanti 11-17-2023.pdf
	AS1.01 Overall Site Plan
	AS1.02 Phase 1 Plan
	2023-1116 LA
	V2 L1.0 Concept Landscape plan-PLAN

	AS1.03 Phase 2
	A1.21 Plan at Storage
	Ypsilanti_Elevations
	A3.01 Details
	22208 ALTA_2023-11-07
	22208 Alta-E1-SS (2)
	22208 Alta-E1-SS

	LL-17580-R-1 (EXT)




